
(Action)(Action)

(Information)(Information)

(Information)(Information)

(Information)(Information)

(Information)(Information)

(Action)(Action)

 

Regular Meeting AgendaRegular Meeting Agenda
Anderson Island Elementary     13005 Camus Road     Anderson Island, Washington

NO STUDY SESSION

9/27/2017 06:30 PM

II. . CALL TO ORDERCALL TO ORDER

A. Pledge of Allegiance
B. Roll Call
C. Approval of Agenda

IIII. . COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCECOMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE

Members of the audience wishing to comment on specific items on this agenda will be allowed to comment briefly during the Comments From the Audience portion

of the agenda. Those wishing to speak will please sign the Speaker List in order to be recognized by the Board. Please limit your comments to three (3) minutes.

The Board will not entertain comments during any other part of the meeting. Remarks of a negative nature singling out specific employees, other than the Board or

Superintendent, will be heard in executive session following the business meeting. The Board reserves the right to terminate presentations containing personal

attacks on individuals.

IIIIII. . INTRODUCTION - Anderson Island Elementary StaffINTRODUCTION - Anderson Island Elementary Staff

IVIV. . PRESENTATIONPRESENTATION
Presenter:Presenter: Anderson Island Elementary Staff and Students

VV. . REPORTSREPORTS
aa. . Legislative AssemblyLegislative Assembly

Presenter:Presenter: Don Denning

VIVI. . CONSENT AGENDACONSENT AGENDA

The purpose of the consent agenda is to reduce time going through motion, second and voting on issues of common consent. Any
Board member can ask for any item to be removed from the consent agenda. There is no discussion of items on the consent
agenda. By motion of the Board, remaining items are approved without discussion as part of the consent agenda. Discussion of
items removed from the consent agenda occurs immediately following action on the consent agenda.
 
 

Approval of August & September Accounts Payable and August 2017 Payroll.pdf (p. 3)

Approval of 8.31.17 Financial Report.pdf (p. 4)

Approval of Co-Curricular Personnel Report.pdf (p. 17)

Approval of Classified Personnel Report.pdf (p. 18)

Regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of Directors of the Steilacoom Historical Steilacoom Historical School District 1 are digitally recorded.

Packet page 1 of 84

https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/645009
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/644652
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/644861
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/644860


(Action)(Action)

(Action)(Action)

(Action)(Action)

(Action)(Action)

(Action)(Action)

(Action)(Action)

(Action)(Action)

(Information)(Information)

(Information)(Information)

(Information)(Information)

(Action)(Action)

Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes 8.24.17.pdf (p. 19)

Approval of Study Session Minutes 9.13.17.pdf (p. 22)

VIIVII. . OLD BUSINESSOLD BUSINESS
aa. . Approval of 2017-18 District and Board GoalsApproval of 2017-18 District and Board Goals

2017-18 District and Board Goals.pdf (p. 24)

bb. . Second Reading of Policy 1410 Executive or Closed SessionsSecond Reading of Policy 1410 Executive or Closed Sessions
Presenter:Presenter: Kathi Weight

Second Reading of Policy 1410.pdf (p. 25)

cc. . Second Reading of Policy 5005 Employment: Disclosures, Certification Requirements,Second Reading of Policy 5005 Employment: Disclosures, Certification Requirements,
Assurances and ApprovalAssurances and Approval
Presenter:Presenter: Kathi Weight

Second Reading of Policy 5005.pdf (p. 28)

dd. . Second Reading of Policy 4040 Public Access to District RecordsSecond Reading of Policy 4040 Public Access to District Records
Presenter:Presenter: Kathi Weight

Second Reading of Policy 4040.pdf (p. 34)

VIIIVIII. . NEW BUSINESSNEW BUSINESS
aa. . Approval of Steilacoom Classified Education Association Collective BargainingApproval of Steilacoom Classified Education Association Collective Bargaining

Agreement 2017-2019Agreement 2017-2019
Presenter:Presenter: Paul Harvey

Approval of SCEA Collective Bargaining Agreement 2017-19.pdf (p. 38)

bb. . First Reading of Policy 3115 Homeless Students: Enrollment Rights and ServicesFirst Reading of Policy 3115 Homeless Students: Enrollment Rights and Services
Presenter:Presenter: Nancy McClure

First Reading of Policy 3115.pdf (p. 73)

cc. . First Reading of Policy 3116 Students in Foster CareFirst Reading of Policy 3116 Students in Foster Care
Presenter:Presenter: Nancy McClure

First Reading of Policy 3116.pdf (p. 80)

IXIX. . COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCECOMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE

Members of the audience wishing to comment on specific items on this agenda will be allowed to comment briefly during the Comments From the Audience portion

of the agenda. Those wishing to speak will please sign the Speaker List in order to be recognized by the Board. Please limit your comments to three (3) minutes.

The Board will not entertain comments during any other part of the meeting. Remarks of a negative nature singling out specific employees, other than the Board or

Superintendent, will be heard in executive session following the business meeting. The Board reserves the right to terminate presentations containing personal

attacks on individuals.

XX. . BOARD COMMUNICATIONBOARD COMMUNICATION

XIXI. . ANNOUNCEMENTSANNOUNCEMENTS

XIIXII. . ADJOURNMENTADJOURNMENT

Regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of Directors of the Steilacoom Historical Steilacoom Historical School District 1 are digitally recorded.

Packet page 2 of 84

https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/644647
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/644649
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/645739
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/644651
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/644650
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/644648
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/645010
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/644646
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/644862


Packet page 3 of 84



Packet page 4 of 84



Packet page 5 of 84



Packet page 6 of 84



Packet page 7 of 84



Packet page 8 of 84



Packet page 9 of 84



Packet page 10 of 84



Packet page 11 of 84



Packet page 12 of 84



Packet page 13 of 84



Packet page 14 of 84



Packet page 15 of 84



Packet page 16 of 84



Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1
Co-Curricular Personnel Report

Personnel Report 9-27-17
Name Position Location Effective Date Amount Comment
Engstrom Hannah Data Team Leader Cherrydale 9/9/2017 1,000.00
Yoho Sylvia Data Team Leader Cherrydale 9/9/2017 1,000.00
Lyons Jill Data Team Leader Cherrydale 9/9/2017 1,000.00
Evans Bettina Data Team Leader Cherrydale 9/9/2017 1,000.00
Perry Annette Data Team Leader Cherrydale 9/9/2017 1,000.00
Anderson-Gonzalez Barbie Primary Music Director Cherrydale 9/9/2017 1,200.00
Merritt Linda Data Team Leader Chloe Clark 9/12/2017 1,000.00
Engquist Sheree Data Team Leader Chloe Clark 9/12/2017 1,000.00
Almeida Kaitlyn Data Team Leader Chloe Clark 9/12/2017 1,000.00
Heying Wendy Data Team Leader Chloe Clark 9/12/2017 1,000.00
Enos Rodney Data Team Leader Chloe Clark 9/12/2017 1,000.00
Peddy Karen Primary Music Director Chloe Clark 9/12/2017 1,200.00
Jetton Joshua Assistant Football Coach High School 9/28/2017 4,079.25
Davies Colby Assistant Football Coach High School 9/28/2017 4,352.00
Bochenek Kelsey Event Manager High School 9/1/2017 600.00
Bathurst Erin Intermediate Music Director Saltar's Point 8/31/2017 2,400.00

Packet page 17 of 84



Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1
Classified Personnel Report

Personnel Report 9-27-17
Name Position Hours Location Effective Date Action Comment
Cuasay Consuelo Paraeducator 3.25 Pioneer 9/28/2017 New Hire
James Stefani Paraeducator Student Specific 6.50 Chloe Clark 9/28/2017 New Hire
Molina Emily Paraeducator 6.50 Chloe Clark 9/28/2017 New Hire
Trujillo Marylin Paraeducator 6.50 Chloe Clark 9/28/2017 New Hire
Auston Miriam Paraeducator 6.50 Chloe Clark 8/28/2017 Resignation
Uglick Peggy Facility Operations Manager 4.00 Maintenance 8/31/2017 Resignation
Worrell Stacy Secretary 8.00 Saltar's Pt. 10/10/2017 New Hire
  
 

Packet page 18 of 84



 

Regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of Directors of the Steilacoom Historical   Steilacoom Historical School District 1 are digitally recorded. 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
School Board Regular Meeting Minutes  

Pioneer Middle School     1750 Bob's Hollow Lane     DuPont, Washington 
Thursday, 8/24/2017 

 
STUDY SESSION 

• Review of agenda 

REGULAR MEETING 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Scott called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.  
Executive Director Beauchaine led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
Director Denning made a motion to excuse Director Forbes; Director Pierce seconded the motion and the motion passed 
(4/0). 
Director Pierce made a motion to approve the agenda; Director Denning seconded the motion and the motion passed 
(4/0). 

II. COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE 
• Cara Mitchell, DuPont, supporting second activity bus at the high school. 

III. INTRODUCTION - NEW STAFF 

Superintendent Weight introduced each school principal who in turn introduced their new staff. The district has hired 33 
new staff to start the 2017-18 school year. 

IV. REPORTS 
a. State Assessment Results 

Executive Director McClure presented 2016-17 school year state assessment results and analysis. 

V. CONSENT AGENDA 

Director Denning made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda which included ASB accounts payable, surplus, 
attached personnel reports and Resolution 841-8-24-17; Director Pierce seconded the motion and the motion passed 
(4/0). 

VI. OLD BUSINESS 
a. Approval of Resolution 842-08-24-17, 2017-18 School Year Budget 

Director Denning made a motion to approve Resolution 842-08-24-17 Approval of 2017-18 School Year Budget; Director 
Schenk seconded the motion and the motion passed (4/0).  

b. District and Board Goals 2017-18 

Superintendent Weight presented the 2017-18 District and Board goals. They will move to approval at the September 
27, 2017, Board meeting. 

Packet page 19 of 84



 

c. Second Reading of Policy 1210 Annual Organizational Meeting 

Director Pierce made a motion to approve Policy 1210; Director Denning seconded the motion and the motion passed 
(4/0). 

d. Second Reading of Policy 1220 Board Officers and Duties of the Board Members 

Director Denning made a motion to approve Policy 1220; Director Pierce seconded the motion and the motion passed 
(4/0). 

e. Second Reading of Policy 1225 School Director Legislative Program 

Director Pierce made a motion to approve Policy 1225; Director Schenk seconded the motion and the motion passed 
(4/0). 

VII. NEW BUSINESS 
a. Approval of July and August 2017 General Fund Accounts Payable and July 2017 Payroll 

Director Denning made a motion to approve the July and August 2017 General Fund accounts payable and July 2017 
payroll; Director Pierce seconded the motion and the motion passed (3/0/1 Director Schenk recused). 

b. 2018 Enrichment Levy 

The Board requested additional information regarding levies in surrounding school districts. 

c. First Reading of Policy 1410 Executive or Closed Sessions 

Director Pierce made a motion to move Policy 1410 to a second reading; Director Denning seconded the motion and the 
motion passed (4/0). 

d. First Reading of Policy 5005 Employment: Disclosures, Certification Requirements, Assurances & Approval 

Director Denning made a motion to move Policy 5005 to a second reading; Director Pierce seconded the motion and the 
motion passed (4/0). 

e. First Reading of Policy 4040 Public Access to District Records 

Director Denning made a motion to move Policy 4040 to a second reading; Director Pierce seconded the motion and the 
motion passed (4/0). 

f. New Construction Mitigation Fees 

Superintendent Weight updated the Board on the progress of working with the City of DuPont regarding new 
construction impact fees. Chair Scott and Director Denning gave the historical developments and need for this process 
with the City of DuPont. Developers will be responsible these fees, not the City of DuPont. 

VIII. COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE 

No comments. 

IX. BOARD COMMUNICATION 
• Director Schenk was contacted by parents regarding the high school activity bus 
• Director Pierce was contacted by a parent regarding teacher placement 
• Director Denning was contacted by a parent regarding girls sports at the high school (more offered in fall than 

winter) 
• Chair Scott has been corresponding with DuPont Mayor Courts regarding mitigation fees 

 
X. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Packet page 20 of 84



 

Regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of Directors of the Steilacoom Historical   Steilacoom Historical School District 1 are digitally recorded. 

Page 3 of 3 
 

• Director Schenk commended Principal Gary Yoho who spoke at a DuPont Community Connection meeting 
• Director Denning commented on a WSSDA conference speaker regarding equity 
• Chair Scott announced the First day of school August 31; staff return August 28, 2017 
• Superintendent Weight announced that the Transforming Professional Learning (TPL) group (Paul Harvey, 

Louann Stalder and teacher leaders) was highlighted in an OSPI publication 
• SHS football jamboree tomorrow in Chehalis, 6 pm 
 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 

Director Denning made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:56 pm; Director Pierce seconded the motion and the 
motion passed (4/0). 

 

 

  ________________________________ 

  (Chair) 

 

  ________________________________    
        
  ________________________________ 

 

_______________________________ ________________________________ 

(Secretary/Superintendent)  

  ________________________________ 

 

 

Packet page 21 of 84



Regularly scheduled meetings of the Steilacoom Historical School District 1 Board of Directors are digitally recorded. 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Study Session of the Board of Directors Minutes 
Steilacoom High School      54 Sentinel Drive     Steilacoom, WA 98388 

Wednesday, 9/13/2017 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Scott called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.  
Executive Director Beauchaine led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
All Directors and Superintendent Weight present. 
Director Forbes made a motion to approve the agenda with the revision of switching items 2 and 3; Director Denning 
seconded the motion and the motion passed (5/0). 

2. PRESENTATION 
a. SHS Standards Based Grading 

Steilacoom High Principal Miller introduced the grading system being implemented at the high school. Assistant Principal 
Tyrrell explained further the misconceptions and concerns around the change. Assistant Principal Lallemand informed 
the board of informational sessions previously offered and future sessions that will be offered to parents. Discussion 
followed. 
              (b. will be presented after property tour) 

3. Walking Tour of Steilacoom High School North Property 

At 6:36 pm, Chair Scott moved the study session to a walking tour inspection of a portion of Steilacoom High School 
property, north of the school, where vandalism has occurred. The tour concluded at 7:06 pm. 

a. Community Based Truancy Board 

Executive Director Beauchaine shared a snapshot of the Community Truancy Board process and results, over the past 3 
school years, as well as plans for the 2017-18 school year. 

4. TOPIC FOR BOARD DISCUSSION 
a. Long-Range Capital Facility Planning - School Capacity & Educational Standards 

Chief of Finance and Operations Brittain discussed current school capacity and standard of service, for future planning, 
funding and annual capital facilities plan. Building grade configuration, Running Start and other educational standards, 
program offerings and state funding for special programs were discussed. Preschool and Childfind will be scheduled at a 
future study session. 

b. 2018 Enrichment Levy 

Chief of Finance and Operations Brittain has been discussing with other districts and the Educational Service District 
regarding language for the ballot. Most districts are running 4-year levies in February 2018. 

 
 

Packet page 22 of 84



Regularly scheduled meetings of the Steilacoom Historical School District 1 Board of Directors are digitally recorded. 

Page 2 of 2 
 

c. Board of Distinction Application Review 

The Board reviewed the draft application for the WSSDA Board of Distinction. Any changes should be sent to 
Superintendent Weight who will submit the application. 
 
OTHER 
Legislative Assembly - September 22-23, 2017 - Director Denning not able to attend; Director Schenk will attend. 
 
Director Forbes announced a recent win by the SHS Girls Swim Team 
  

5. ADJOURNMENT 

Director Forbes made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:16 pm; Director Denning seconded the motion and the 
motion passed (5/0). 

 

  ________________________________ 

  (Chair) 

 

  ________________________________    
        
  ________________________________ 

 

_______________________________ ________________________________ 

(Secretary/Superintendent)  

  ________________________________ 

 

 

 

Packet page 23 of 84



2017- 2018
District and Board Goals

O Continue development of Long-Range Capital Facilities Plan 
(LRCFP). 

O Create and launch 2018 Strategic Plan.

O Continue focus on safety and security in alignment with 
comprehensive analysis from site assessments.

O Refine district Communications Plan. 

Packet page 24 of 84



 OF DIRECTORS 
 

STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Board Meeting Date: _September 27, 2017 

Strategic Focus Area 

☐  Teaching and Learning        

☒   Safety, Service and Support  

☐  Family & Community Involvement 

☐  Resource Management         

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Second Reading of Policy 1410 Executive or Closed Sessions 
 

• No changes since First Reading 

 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
It is the recommendation of the Superintendent to approve Policy 1410. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report prepared by: 
Kathi Weight, Superintendent 
_______________________________________________________________________________  

Packet page 25 of 84



Policy No. 1410 
Board of Directors 

 

Page 1 of 2 

EXECUTIVE OR CLOSED SESSIONS 
Executive Sessions 
Before convening in executive session, the chair will publicly announce the general purpose for 
excluding the public from the meeting place and the time when the executive session will be 
concluded. The executive session may be extended to a stated later time by announcement of the 
chair. 
An executive session may be conducted for one or more of the following purposes: 

A. To consider, if in compliance with any required data breach disclosure under RCW 
19.255.010 and 42.56.590, and with legal counsel available, information regarding the 
infrastructure and security of computer and telecommunications networks, security and 
service recovery plans, security risk assessments, and security test results to the extent that 
they identify specific system vulnerabilities, and other information that, if made public, may 
increase risk to the confidentiality, integrity, or availability of agency security or to 
information technology infrastructure or assets; 

B. To consider the selection of a site or the acquisition of real estate by lease or purchase when 
public knowledge regarding such consideration would cause a likelihood of increased price; 

C. To consider the minimum price at which real estate will be offered for sale or lease when 
public knowledge regarding such consideration would cause a likelihood of decreased price; 
however, the final action of selling or leasing public property will be taken in a meeting open 
to the public; 

D. To review negotiations on the performance of publicly-bid contracts when public knowledge 
regarding such consideration would cause a likelihood of increased costs; 

E. To receive and evaluate complaints or charges brought against a director or staff member; 
however, upon the request of such director or staff member, a public hearing or a meeting 
open to the public will be conducted on such complaint or charge; 

F. To evaluate the qualifications of an applicant for public employment or to review the 
performance of a staff member; however, discussion of salaries, wages, and other conditions 
of employment to be generally applied within the district shall occur in a meeting open to the 
public, and when the board elects to take the final action of hiring, setting the salary of an 
individual staff member or class of staff members, or discharging or disciplining an 
employee, that action shall be taken in a meeting open to the public; 

G. To evaluate the qualifications of a candidate for appointment to the board; however, any 
interview of such candidate and final action appointing a candidate to the board shall be in a 
meeting open to the public; or 

H. To discuss with legal counsel representing the district matters relating to district enforcement 
actions, or litigation or potential litigation to which the district, the board, or a member acting 
in an official capacity is, or is likely to become, a party, when public knowledge regarding 
the discussion is likely to result in an adverse legal or financial consequence to the district. 
Potential litigation means matters protected by attorney-client privilege related to litigation 
that has been specifically threatened; litigation that the district reasonably believes may be 
commenced; or the litigation or legal risks of a proposed action or current practice of the 
district, if public discussion is likely to result in an adverse or financial consequence to the 
district. 

Packet page 26 of 84



Policy No. 1410 
Board of Directors 

 

Page 2 of 2 

Closed Sessions/Private Meetings 
The Open Public Meetings Act does not apply to certain board activities and public notice is not 
required prior to holding a closed session for any of the following purposes: 
A. Consideration of a quasi-judicial matter between named parties as distinguished from a 

matter having a general effect on the public or a class or group; or 

B. Collective bargaining sessions with employee organizations or professional negotiations with 
an employee, including contract negotiations, grievance meetings, and discussions relating to 
the interpretation or application of a labor agreement, or when the board is planning or 
adopting the strategy or position to be taken during the course of collective bargaining, 
professional negotiations, or grievance or mediation proceedings, or reviewing the proposals 
made in the negotiations or proceedings while in progress.  

 

 

 

 

Legal References: RCW 42.30.110 Executive sessions 
 RCW 42.30.140 Chapter controlling — Application 
   RCW 19.255.010         Disclosure, notice - Definitions - Rights, 
remedies 

 RCW 42.56.590  Personal information - Notice of security 
breaches. 

 
Management Resources:  2017 – July Issue 
  Policy News, June 2001 Legislature Addresses Executive Session 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adoption Date: 2.27.08 
School District Name: Steilacoom Historical School District 
Revised: 5.28.08; 9.27.17 
Reviewed: 4.30.11 

Packet page 27 of 84



 OF DIRECTORS 
 

STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Board Meeting Date: _September 27, 2017 

Strategic Focus Area 

☐  Teaching and Learning        

☒   Safety, Service and Support  

☒  Family & Community Involvement 

☐  Resource Management         

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Second Reading of Policy 5005 Employment: Disclosures, Certification Requirements, Assurances 
and Approval 
 

• No changes since First Reading 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
It is the recommendation of the Superintendent to approve Policy 5005. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report prepared by: 
Kathi Weight, Superintendent 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
  

Packet page 28 of 84



Page 1 of 5 

Policy No. 5005 
Personnel 

EMPLOYMENT AND VOLUNTEERS: DISCLOSURES, 
CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS, ASSURANCES AND 

APPROVAL 
 
Federal Immigration Law Compliance for Staff 
 
The board has the legal responsibility of employing all staff. The responsibility of administering 
the recruitment process is assigned to the superintendent. Prior to final action by the board, a 
prospective staff member will present necessary documents which establish eligibility to work as 
required by federal immigration law.. The superintendent will certify that he/she has: “examined 
the documents which were presented to me by the new hire, that the documents appear to be 
genuine, that they appear to relate to the individual named, and that the individual is a U.S. citi-
zen, a legal permanent resident, or a non-immigrant alien with authorization to work.” This certi-
fication will be made on the I-9 form issued by the Federal Immigration and Naturalization Ser-
vice. 

Child Support Reporting for Staff 
The district will report all new hires to the state Department of Social and Health Services Divi-
sion of Child Support as required by P.L. 104-193, the Personal Responsibility and Work Oppor-
tunity Reconciliation Act of 1996. 

Sexual Misconduct Release Form for Staff 
Pursuant to state law, the district will require that every prospective staff member sign a release 
form allowing the district to contact school employers regarding prior acts of sexual misconduct. 
The applicant will authorize current and past school district employers including employers out-
side of Washington to disclose to the district sexual misconduct, if any, and make available to the 
district all documents in the employer’s personnel, investigative or other files related to the sexu-
al misconduct. The applicant is not prohibited from employment in Washington state if the laws 
or policies of another state prohibit disclosure of this information or if the out-of-state district 
denies the request.  

Disclosures for Staff and Volunteers 
Prior to employment of any unsupervised staff member or volunteer, the district will require the 
applicant to disclose whether he/she has been: 

A. Convicted of any crime against persons; 

B. Found in any dependency action under RCW 13.34 to have sexually assaulted or exploited 
any minor or to have physically abused any minor; 

C. Found by a court in a domestic relations proceeding under Title 26 RCW to have sexually 
abused or exploited any minor or to have physically abused any minor; 

D. Found in any disciplinary board final decision to have sexually abused or exploited any mi-
nor or to have physically abused any minor: or 

E. Convicted of a crime related to drugs: manufacture, delivery, or possession with intent to 
manufacture or deliver a controlled substance. 

For purposes of this policy, unsupervised means not in the presence of another employee or vol-
unteer and working with children under sixteen years of age or developmentally disabled per-

Packet page 29 of 84

http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/PLAW-104publ193/html/PLAW-104publ193.htm
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/PLAW-104publ193/html/PLAW-104publ193.htm
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=13.34
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?Cite=26


Page 2 of 5 

Policy No. 5005 
Personnel 

sons. The disclosure will be made in writing and signed by the applicant and sworn to under pen-
alty of perjury. The disclosure sheet will specify all crimes committed against persons. 

Background Check for Staff and Volunteers 
Staff and Volunteers with Regularly Scheduled Unsupervised Access to Children: 

Prospective staff members and volunteers, who will have regularly scheduled unsupervised ac-
cess to children, will have their records checked through the Washington State Patrol criminal 
identification system and through the Federal Bureau of Investigation. The record check will in-
clude a fingerprint check using a complete Washington state criminal identification fingerprint 
card. 

All Other Staff and Volunteers: 

Staff and volunteers without unsupervised access to children will also undergo a name and birth 
date background check with the Washington State Patrol. If a volunteer has undergone a criminal 
record check in the last two years for another entity, the district shall request a copy from the 
volunteer, or have the volunteer sign a release permitting the entity for whom the check was 
conducted to provide a copy to the district. 

Conditional Employment: 

New hires will be employed on a conditional basis pending the outcome of the background check 
and may begin conditional employment once completed fingerprint cards have been sent to the 
Washington state patrol. If the background check reveals evidence of convictions as identified 
above, the candidate will not be recommended for employment, or if conditionally employed, 
may be terminated. When such a background check is received, the superintendent/designee is 
directed to consult with legal counsel. 

Record Check Data Base Access Designee 
The superintendent/designee is directed to establish procedures for determining which staff 
members are authorized to access the Superintendent of Public Instruction’s (OSPI) record check 
database. Fingerprint record information is highly confidential and will not be re-disseminated to 
any organization or individual by district staff. Records of arrest and prosecution (RAP sheets) 
shall be stored in a secure location separate from personnel and applicant files and access to this 
information is limited to those authorized to access the SPI record check data base. 

Certification Requirements 
The district will require that certificated staff hold a Washington state certificate, with proper en-
dorsement (if required for that certificate and unless eligible for out-of-endorsement assignment), 
or such other documentation as may be required by the professional educator standards board 
with respect to alternative route programs, for the role and responsibilities for which they are 
employed. Failure to meet this requirement will be just and sufficient cause for termination of 
employment. State law requires that the initial application for certification will require a back-
ground check of the applicant through the Washington State Patrol criminal identification system 
and Federal Bureau of Investigation. No salary warrants may be issued to the staff member until 
the district has registered a valid certificate for the role to which he/she has been assigned. 

All certificated staff members are required to maintain their certification in accordance with state 
and federal requirements. 
 

Packet page 30 of 84



Page 3 of 5 

Policy No. 5005 
Personnel 

Classified Staff 
Classified staff who are engaged to serve less than twelve (12) months, will be advised of their 
employment status for the ensuing school year prior to the close of the school year. If the district 
chooses to reemploy the staff member the following year, the superintendent/designee will give 
“reasonable assurance” by written notice that the staff member will be employed during the next 
school year. 

Board Approval 
All staff members selected for employment will be recommended by the superintendent. Staff 
members must receive an affirmative vote from a majority of all members of the board. In the 
event an authorized position must be filled before the board can take action, the superintendent 
has the authority to fill the position with a temporary employee who will receive the same salary 
and benefits as a permanent staff member. The board will act on the superintendent's recommen-
dation to fill the vacancy at its next regular meeting. 

 
Cross References: 1610 Conflicts of Interest  
  
 5252 – Staff Participation in Political Activities 
 5006 Certification Revocation 
 5281 Disciplinary Action and Discharge 
 5520 Staff Development 
 5610Substitute Employment 
 6530Insurance 
 

Legal References:  
RCW 9.96A.020 Employment, occupational licensing by public 
entity — Prior felony conviction no disqualification — Excep-
tions  

 
RCW 28A.320.155 Criminal history record information — 
School volunteers  

 

RCW 28A.400.300 Hiring and discharging of employees — 
Written leave policies — Seniority and leave benefits of employ-
ees transferring between school districts and other educational 
employers  

 

RCW 28A.400.301 Information on past sexual misconduct - Re-
quirement for applicants - Limitation on contracts and agree-
ments - Employee right to review personnel file  

 RCW 28A.400.303 Record checks for employees  

 
RCW 28A.405.060 Course of study and regulations — Enforce-
ment — Withholding salary warrant for failure  

 

RCW 28A. 405.210 Conditions and contracts of employment — 
Determination of probable cause for nonrenewal of contracts — 
Nonrenewal due to enrollment decline or revenue loss — Notice 
— Opportunity for hearing  

 
RCW 28A.410.010 Certification — Duty of professional educa-
tor standards board — Rules — Record check — Lapsed certifi-

Packet page 31 of 84



Page 4 of 5 

Policy No. 5005 
Personnel 

cates — Superintendent of public instruction as administrator  

 RCW 28A.660.020 Proposals - Funding  

 
RCW 28A.660.035 Partnership grant programs - Priority assis-
tance in advancing cultural competency skills  

 
RCW 43.43.830 Background checks — Access to children or 
vulnerable persons — Definitions  

 
RCW 50.44.050 Benefits payable, terms and conditions — "Aca-
demic year" defined  

 
RCW 50.44.053 "Reasonable assurance" defined — Presump-
tion, employees of educational institutions  

 
P.L. 99-603 Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 
(IRCA)  

 
P.L. 104-193 Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity 
Reconciliation Act of 1996  

 
WAC 162-12 Preemployment Inquiry Guide (Human Rights 
Commission)  

 
WAC 180-16-220 Supplemental basic education program ap-
proval requirements  

 
WAC 181-79A Standards for teacher, administrator and educa-
tional staff associate certification  

 
WAC 181-82-105 Assignment of classroom teachers within dis-
tricts  

 
WAC 181-82-110 School district response and support for non-
matched endorsements to course assignment of teachers  

 
WAC 181-85 Professional certification — Continuing education 
requirement  

 WAC 392-300-050 Access to record check data base  

 

WAC 392-300-055 Prohibition of redissemination of fingerprint 
record information by educational service districts, the State 
School for the Deaf, the State School for the Blind, school dis-
tricts, and Bureau of Indian Affairs funded schools  

 

WAC 392-300-060 Protection of fingerprint record information 
by educational service district, the State School for the Deaf, the 
State School for the Blind, school districts, and Bureau of Indian 
Affairs funded schools  

 WAC 446-20-280 Employment — Conviction records  
     
Management Resources:  2017 - July Issue  

 2010 - October Issue  

 Policy News, October 2005 Public Disclosure  

 
Policy News, October 2005 Sex Offender Reporting Require-
ments  

 Policy News, April 2004 School Employee Sexual Misconduct  

Packet page 32 of 84



Page 5 of 5 

Policy No. 5005 
Personnel 

 
Policy News, October 2001 Updates from the State Board of Ed-
ucation  

 Policy News, June 1999 School Safety Bills Impact Policy  

 
Policy News, February 1999 Local Boards Decide Endorsement 
Waivers  

 Policy News, August 1998 District Must Report New Hires  
   

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
Adoption Date: 2.27.08 
School District Name: Steilacoom Historical School District 
Revised: 9.27.17 
 

Packet page 33 of 84



 OF DIRECTORS 
 

STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Board Meeting Date: September 27, 2017 

Strategic Focus Area 

☐  Teaching and Learning        

☐   Safety, Service and Support  

☒  Family & Community Involvement 

☒  Resource Management         

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Second Reading of Policy 4040 Public Access to District Records 
 

• No changes since First Reading 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
It is the recommendation of the Superintendent to approve Policy 4040. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report prepared by: 
Kathi Weight, Superintendent 
_______________________________________________________________________________  

Packet page 34 of 84



Page 1 of 3 

Policy No. 4040 
Community Relations 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO DISTRICT RECORDS 
 
Consistent with Washington State law, the Board is committed to providing the public full access 
to records concerning the administration and operations of the District. Such access promotes 
important public policy, maintains public confidence in the fairness of governmental processes, 
and protects the community’s interest in the control and operation of its common school district. 
At the same time, the Board desires to preserve the efficient administration of government and 
acknowledges the privacy rights of individuals whose records may be maintained by the District. 
This policy and the accompanying procedure are intended to facilitate access to school district 
records without compromising operational efficiency or privacy rights.     
 
As used in this policy and the accompanying procedure, “school district records” is a broad term 
that includes any writing containing information relating to the conduct of the District or the per-
formance of any District governmental or proprietary function prepared, owned, used, or retained 
by the District regardless of physical form or characteristics. A “writing” as used in this policy 
and procedure is likewise a broad term that means any handwriting, typewriting, printing, photo-
copying, photographing, or other means of recording any form of communication or representa-
tion.  
 
The definition of “school district records” does not include records that are not otherwise re-
quired to be retained by the District and are held by volunteers who do not service in an adminis-
trative capacity, have not been appointed by the District to a District board, commission, or in-
ternship, and do not have a supervisory role or delegated District authority.  
 
Because of the tremendous volume and diversity of records continuously generated by a public 
school district, the Board has declared by formal resolution that trying to maintain a current in-
dex of all of the District’s records would be impracticable, unduly burdensome, and ultimately 
interfere with the operational work of the District. Additionally, the Board hereby finds that it 
would be unduly burdensome to calculate the costs of producing public records, given the multi-
ple different electronic and manual devices used to produce public records, as well as the fluctu-
ating costs of District supplies and labor.    
 
The Superintendent will develop—and the Board will periodically review—procedures con-
sistent with state law that will facilitate this policy. The Superintendent will also appoint a Public 
Records Officer who will serve as a point of contact for members of the public who request the 
disclosure of public records.  The Public Records Officer will be trained in the laws and regula-
tions governing the retention and disclosure of records, and will oversee the District’s compli-
ance with this policy and state law.  
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Packet page 35 of 84



Page 2 of 3 

Policy No. 4040 
Community Relations 

Cross Reference: Board Policy 3231 Student Records 
 
Legal Reference: Chapter 5.60 RCW Witnesses — Competency 
 Chapter 13.04.155(3) RCW Notification to school principal of conviction, 

adjudication, or diversion agreement 
— Provision of information to 
teachers and other personnel — 
Confidentiality. 

 Chapter 26.44.010 RCW Declaration of purpose. 
 Chapter 26.44.030(9) RCW Reports — Duty and authority to make — 

Duty of receiving agency — Duty to 
notify — Case planning and 
consultation — Penalty for 
unauthorized exchange of 
information — Filing dependency 
petitions — Investigations — 
Interviews of children — Records — 
Risk assessment process. 

 Chapter 28A.605.030 RCW Student education records — Parental review 
— Release of records — Procedure. 

 Chapter 28A.635.040 RCW Examination questions — Disclosing — 
Penalty. 

 Chapter 40.14 RCW Preservation and destruction of public 
records 

 Chapter 42.17A RCW Campagin Disclosure and Contribution  
 Chapter  42.56 RCW Public Records Act 
 
 WAC 392-172A Rules for the provision of special 

education 
  

 
Public Law 98-24, Section 527 of the Public Health Services 
Act, 41 USC § 290dd-2 

 
  20 U.S.C. § 1232g Federal Education Rights Privacy Act 

(FERPA) 
  

 
20 U.S.C. § 1400 et. seq. Individuals with Disabilities Education 
Act (IDEA) 

 42 U.S.C. § 1758(b)(6)  

 
34 CFR Part 300—ASSISTANCE TO STATES FOR THE 
EDUCATION OF CHILDREN WITH DISABILITIES 

 

45 CFR Part 160—164—GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE 
REQUIREMENTS, ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS 
AND SECURITY AND PRIVACY 
 
 

 

Packet page 36 of 84

http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/USCODE-2010-title42/pdf/USCODE-2010-title42-chap6A-subchapIII-A-partD-sec290dd-2.pdf
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/USCODE-2010-title42/pdf/USCODE-2010-title42-chap6A-subchapIII-A-partD-sec290dd-2.pdf
http://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20%20section:1400%20edition:prelim)%20OR%20(granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1400)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
http://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20%20section:1400%20edition:prelim)%20OR%20(granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1400)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
http://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:42%20section:1758%20edition:prelim)%20OR%20(granuleid:USC-prelim-title42-section1758)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true#substructure-location_b_6
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=2a9b6c959362e494a9cabcbc882f1788&mc=true&node=pt34.2.300&rgn=div5#_top
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=2a9b6c959362e494a9cabcbc882f1788&mc=true&node=pt34.2.300&rgn=div5#_top
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=aff48297a6d3984d36ac653c3a2e3955&mc=true&tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title45/45CsubchapC.tpl
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=aff48297a6d3984d36ac653c3a2e3955&mc=true&tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title45/45CsubchapC.tpl
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=aff48297a6d3984d36ac653c3a2e3955&mc=true&tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title45/45CsubchapC.tpl


Page 3 of 3 

Policy No. 4040 
Community Relations 

Management Resources:  2017 – July Issue 
   2015 – December Issue 
   2015 – April Issue 
   2012 - April Issue  
   2010 - February Issue  
   Policy News, June 2006  
   Policy News, October 2005  
   Washington State Office of the Attorney General – Open 

Government Training  
   Washington State Office of the Attorney General – Model Rules on 

Public Disclosure  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adoption Date: 2.27.08 
School District Name: Steilacoom Historical School District 
Revised: 1.14.09, 8.23.12; 5.13.15; 9.27.17 

Packet page 37 of 84



 OF DIRECTORS 
 

STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Board Meeting Date: __September 27, 2017 

Strategic Focus Area 

☐  Teaching and Learning        

☐   Safety, Service and Support  

☐  Family & Community Involvement 

☒  Resource Management         

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The SCEA contract covers all non-exempt classified employees in the school district.  This agreement 
reorganized some position classifications to become more similar with other districts and also to create avenues 
for growth and promotion of classified staff.   
 
SCEA voted to ratify the agreement on September 6, 2017. 
 
The following provides some of the substantial changes in the new bargained agreement: 
 

• Duration - two year agreement (2017-2018 and 2018-2019 school years) 
• Fiscal impact 2017-2018 school year: 

 4.3% - $176,403 above the pass-thru from the state 
 state’s 2.3% COLA 
 Reclassification and comparable level adjustments for several position 

• Fiscal impact 2018-2019 school year: 
• Salary schedule hourly rates will be increased by previous year’s annual average Consumer 

Price Index (CPI) 
• CPI - official current base compiled by the Bureau of Labor Statistics for the City of Seattle.  

CPI measures changes in the price level of a market basket of consumer goods and services 
purchased by households.   
 

• Evaluation form will add third column to evaluation areas “exceeds expectations”  
 

• Consultation process with supervisor for vacations longer than five days with notice five days prior, 
except in emergencies 

 
• Sub rate = 85% of Step 1 on salary schedule 

All other contract provisions remain the same as the current agreement.  Some non-substantive grammatical 
and/or typographical changes have been made. 
 
This agreement allows our classified salaries to remain competitive with similar jobs in nearby districts.  The 
changes assist the district in both the retention and recruitment of professional and technical staff. 
 
We appreciate the partnership of the Association in reaching this agreement.   
 
Thank you to Paul Harvey for being the primary point of contact for the School District and to Jim Brittain for 
helping research the financial implications of the bargain. 
 
 
 

Packet page 38 of 84



 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
It is the recommendation of the Superintendent that the Board approve the 2017-19 Agreement with 
Steilacoom Classified Education Association as described. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report prepared by: 
Paul Harvey, Executive Director of Student Achievement 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

Packet page 39 of 84



1  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 
 
 
 

And 
 
 
 

Steilacoom Classified Education Association 
 

Effective September 1, 2017 – August 31, 2019 
 
 
 

Collective Bargaining Agreement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Packet page 40 of 84



2  

Table of Contents 
ARTICLE I:  AGREEMENT CONDITIONS .................................................................................. 4 

1.1 Preamble .............................................................................................................. 4 
1.2 Recognition .......................................................................................................... 4 
1.3 Compliance of Agreement ................................................................................... 4 
1.4 Status of Agreement............................................................................................. 4 
1.5 Conformity to Law............................................................................................... 4 
1.6 Agreement Administration................................................................................... 5 
1.7 Printing and Agreement Distribution................................................................... 5 
1.8 No Strike, No lock out ......................................................................................... 5 
1.9 Management Rights ............................................................................................. 5 
1.10 Annual Joint Contract Awareness Meetings ........................................................ 5 

ARTICLE II: ASSOCIATION RIGHTS ........................................................................................ 5 
2.1 Access .................................................................................................................. 5 
2.2 Equipment and Facilities Use .............................................................................. 5 
2.3 Membership Communication............................................................................... 6 
2.4 Availability of Information .................................................................................. 6 
2.5 Dues Deductions .................................................................................................. 6 

ARTICLE III:  PERSONNEL ........................................................................................................ 6 
3.1 Non-Discrimination ............................................................................................. 6 
3.2 Controversial Issues ............................................................................................. 6 
3.3 Student Discipline ................................................................................................ 7 
3.4 Health and Safety ................................................................................................. 8 
3.5 Personnel Files ..................................................................................................... 8 
3.6 Due Process.......................................................................................................... 8 
3.7 Assignments, Transfers, and Vacancies............................................................... 9 
3.8 Involuntary Transfer ...........................................................................................10 
3.9 Moving to Another Building.............................................................................. 11 
3.10 Training and In-service ...................................................................................... 11 
3.11 Hours of Work/Overtime ................................................................................... 11 
3.12 Dispensing Student Medication ......................................................................... 12 
3.13 Notification of Job Assignment ......................................................................... 13 
3.14 Seniority/Probation ............................................................................................ 13 
3.15 Inclement Weather ............................................................................................. 13 
3.16 Workload............................................................................................................ 14 

ARTICLE IV:   GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE ............................................................................ 14 
4.1 Definition ........................................................................................................... 14 
4.2 Procedure for Processing Grievances ................................................................ 14 
4.3 Arbitration.......................................................................................................... 15 
4.4 Jurisdiction of the Arbitrator.............................................................................. 15 
4.5 Time Limits........................................................................................................ 15 
4.6 Accelerated Grievance Filing ............................................................................ 16 
4.7 Reprisals............................................................................................................. 16 
4.8 Costs................................................................................................................... 16 

ARTICLE V:  EVALUATION..................................................................................................... 16 
ARTICLE VI:  ECONOMIC PROVISIONS ............................................................................... 17 

6.1 Salary ................................................................................................................. 17 

Packet page 41 of 84



3 

 

 

6.10 Longevity Pay .................................................................................................... 18 
6.11 Training Pay....................................................................................................... 18 
6.12 Fringe Benefits ................................................................................................... 18 
6.13 Employer Liability Policy.................................................................................. 19 
6.14 Premium Reduction Fund .................................................................................. 19 
6.15 Payroll Deductions ............................................................................................. 19 

Article VII:  HOLIDAYS AND VACATIONS............................................................................ 19 
7.1 Vacations (Custodial, Maintenance and Grounds Only) ................................... 19 
7.2 Paid Holidays ..................................................................................................... 20 
7.3 Un-worked Holidays .......................................................................................... 20 
7.4 Worked Holidays ............................................................................................... 21 

ARTICLE VIII:  LEAVES ........................................................................................................... 21 
8.1 Sick Leave.......................................................................................................... 21 
8.2 Annual Sick Leave Cash-Out............................................................................. 21 
8.3 Sick Leave Cash-Out at Retirement or Death.................................................... 22 
8.4 Family and Medical Leave Act .......................................................................... 22 
8.5 Family Care Leave ............................................................................................. 22 
8.6 Maternity Leave ................................................................................................. 22 
8.7 Adoption Leave.................................................................................................. 22 
8.8 Bereavement Leave............................................................................................ 22 
8.9 Judicial Leave .................................................................................................... 22 
8.10 Military Leave.................................................................................................... 23 
8.11 Personal Leave ................................................................................................... 23 
8.12 Association Leave .............................................................................................. 23 
8.13 Other Leaves ...................................................................................................... 23 
8.14 Leave Sharing .................................................................................................... 23 

ARTICLE IX:  LAY OFF AND RECALL................................................................................... 24 
ARTICLE X: DURATION ........................................................................................................... 26 
Attachment 1 – Seven Tests of Just Cause ................................................................................... 27 
Attachment 2 – Grievance Form ................................................................................................... 28 
Attachment 3 – Evaluation Form .................................................................................................. 29 
Attachment 4 – Family Medical Leave Act.................................................................................. 31 
Attachment 5 – 2017-18 Salary Schedule ..................................................................................... 33 
 

 
 

Packet page 42 of 84



4 

 

 

ARTICLE I:  AGREEMENT CONDITIONS 
 
1.1 Preamble 

This agreement is made and entered into between the Steilacoom Historical School 
District No. 1, hereinafter called the District, and the Steilacoom Classified Education 
Association, hereinafter called the Association. 

 
1.2  Recognition 

The District recognizes the Association as the sole and exclusive bargaining 
representative for all non-certificated full time and regular part-time employees who are 
employed by the District or who are on leave by Board action, excluding administrators, 
supervisors, and confidential employees.  The term "employee" when used hereinafter in 
this Agreement shall refer to all employees represented by the Association in the 
bargaining unit as above defined. 

 
1.2.1 Employees covered under this agreement shall also include employees who work 

thirty (30) or more days in the current or prior school year, and who continue to be 
available for work. The following provisions of the contract shall apply to thirty 
(30) day employees. 

 
Article I - Agreement Conditions 
Article III - Personnel 

Section 3.3: Student Discipline 
Section 3.4:  Health and Safety 
Section 3.11: Hours of Work/Overtime 
Section 3.12: Dispensing Student Medication 

Article IV – Grievance Procedure 
Article VI – Economic Provisions 

Section 6.1:  Salary 
Section 6.5: Compensation 
Section 6.6: Transportation Benefits 

 
1.3 Compliance of Agreement 

All conditions of employment shall be consistent with the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. 

 
1.4 Status of Agreement 

The language of this Agreement shall supersede language in the rules, regulations, 
policies, or resolutions of the District which is contrary to, or inconsistent with, its terms. 

 
1.5 Conformity to Law 

This agreement shall be governed and constructed according to the laws of the State of 
Washington. If any provision of this agreement is found to be contrary to those laws, the 
remaining provisions of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect and be 
binding upon the parties hereto.  If any provision of this Agreement is so held to be 
contrary to the law, the parties shall agree to establish a mutually agreeable date to 
commence negotiations on the specific item if necessary. 

Packet page 43 of 84



5 

 

 

1.6 Agreement Administration 
The Association President shall meet with the Superintendent or his/her appointed 
designee with the authority to make decisions at a scheduled monthly meeting, or as 
mutually agreed upon, to discuss matters covered by this Agreement, including budget 
matters. Either party may postpone such meetings. These meetings are not intended to 
bypass administrative channels, contract negotiations, or grievance procedures. 

 
1.7 Printing and Agreement Distribution 

Within forty-five (45) days following the ratification and signing of this agreement by the 
Parties, the District shall provide five (5) hard copies of this Agreement to each building to 
be available for classified employees’ reference. These copies will be placed in locations 
easily accessible to classified employees (i.e. office, staff room, etc.). 

 
Fifteen (15) additional copies shall be provided to the Association. The cost of the 
printing shall be paid by the District. 

 
The Agreement shall be published on the District website within thirty (30) days of 
ratification. 

 
1.8 No Strike, No lock out 

The Association agrees that during the term of this Agreement it will not cause or 
encourage its members to engage in any strike or work stoppage. The District agrees it 
shall not lock out its employees. 

 
1.9 Management Rights 

The Board and its agents, except those who are specifically abridged or modified by this 
Agreement, retain all rights, powers and authority of the District. 

 
1.10 Annual Joint Contract Awareness Meetings 

In an effort to increase knowledge and understanding of the SCEA/District contract, the 
District and the SCEA shall jointly plan and present to all District and school 
administrators, and SCEA building representative and officers, a review of the contract 
provisions. This meeting shall occur each year before October 1, or at an alternative 
time as mutually agreed between the parties. 

 
ARTICLE II: ASSOCIATION RIGHTS 
 
2.1 Access 

Association representatives shall be permitted reasonable access to the District buildings 
and its members for the purpose of conducting Association business, provided they report 
to the office of the building administrator in advance, and provided further that such 
access shall not interfere with, interrupt, or be in conflict with the District or the 
employee's work schedules. 

 
2.2      Equipment and Facilities Use 

The Association will be permitted to use District equipment such as computers, the e-mail 
system, and copy machines in accordance with District-established usage guidelines, and 
the following guidelines: 

 

Packet page 44 of 84



6 

 

 

2.2.1 Such use of district equipment shall be approved by the site administrator provided 
such use will not interfere with school needs. 

 
2.2.2 The Association shall reimburse the District for any cost to the District incurred by 

such use of equipment including the cost of any materials used, and for any repairs 
required or any damages resulting from the Association use. 

 
2.2.3 The Association will be permitted, to hold Association meetings on school property, 

provided that such meetings are outside working hours and will not interfere with 
school operations.  Such meetings shall be scheduled in advance.   

 
2.3 Membership Communication 

The Association will be permitted to use the inter district mail facilities, including email, for 
the distribution of Association communications, provided that such use does not disrupt or 
interfere with normal school mail service and communication.  Space shall be provided at 
each work site for an Association bulletin board. Notices of Association activities and 
matters may be posted on building employee bulletin boards.  Such notices must contain 
the name of the authorizing Association representative. 

 
2.4 Availability of Information 

The District agrees to furnish to the Association, in response to reasonable 
requests, all information that is of public record. The District may charge the 
Association the cost of reproducing District records and documents. 

 
2.5 Dues Deductions 

The District will deduct Association dues from the pay of bargaining unit employees who 
authorize such deductions in writing pursuant to RCW 41.56.110. The District will transmit 
such funds deducted to the designated Treasurer of the Association. Cancellation of dues 
must be received in the business office directly from the Association. The District shall 
provide for automatic reinstatement of deductions for Association dues for employees 
returning from leave. The Association agrees to defend and hold the District harmless in 
the application of this section. There shall be no discrimination against any employee by 
reason of his/her participation or lack thereof as a member of this Association. 

 
ARTICLE III:  PERSONNEL 
 
3.1 Non-Discrimination 

The parties to this Agreement shall not discriminate against any employee with regard to 
domicile, race, creed, religion, color, age, sex, gender identity, sexual orientation, national 
origin/language, or ancestry, the presence of any sensory, mental or physical disability, 
the use of a trained guide dog or service animal by a person with a disability, familial or 
marital status, honorably discharged veteran or military status, and HIV/Hepatitis C 
status, except in accordance with this Agreement, or as otherwise provided by law. 

 
3.2 Controversial Issues 

An employee who is involved in the process of instruction of students shall give due 
respect to the rights and opinions of the students. Employees, when following the 
direction of the Supervisor in accordance with the District Instructional Materials Policy 
shall not be disciplined.  Questionable matters concerning the appropriateness of the 
issue and the maturity of the students shall be referred to the Supervisor for consideration 
and action. 

 

Packet page 45 of 84



7 

 

 

3.3 Student Discipline 
All bargaining unit employees have the right to a safe and healthy workplace. The 
District is committed to provide for a work environment free of workplace violence and 
other potential hazards to the personal safety of bargaining unit employees. If a student 
is transferred into an identified program, all employees with a legitimate educational 
interest shall be notified immediately.  Similarly, employees providing services to 
students, will be provided sufficient information to ensure they can adequately support 
students.  Examples of sufficient information may include behavior contracts or plans, 
when appropriate. 

 
3.3.1 The District will provide training for all district staff in regard to the content and 

intent of policies, in addition to general violence, safety issues and 
responsibilities.  Upon request, the Association president shall receive a list of all 
District training provided to employees. 

 
3.3.2 In the maintenance of sound learning environment, the District shall expect 

acceptable behavior on the part of all students who attend schools in the District. 
Discipline shall be enforced fairly and consistently. The Board and the 
Superintendent shall support and uphold employees in their efforts to maintain 
discipline in the District, and shall give expeditious response to all employees’ 
requests regarding discipline problems, provided the employee has followed 
established District policy. District policies and the student handbook shall be 
available to employees through district or building offices.  

 
3.3.3 In emergency situations regarding the exercise of authority by an employee to 

control and maintain order and discipline, the employee shall use reasonable and 
professional judgment concerning matters not provided for by specific policies 
adopted by the Board and not inconsistent with Federal and State laws and 
regulations. State and Federal rules and regulations can be accessed through the 
Superintendent's office. 

 
3.3.5 Each employee shall be entitled to appropriate assistance, support and 

enforcement from building administrators in connection with discipline problems 
relating to students. The building administrator will be responsible for monitoring 
and follow-through of disciplinary actions. 

 
3.3.6    Each employee shall be promptly advised of any complaint made to the 

principal or other School District administrators regarding the employee's 
discipline of students. The employee shall be given the opportunity to present 
his or her version of the incident. 

 
3.3.7 In the case of student misconduct or insubordination, when the employee 

deems it necessary, he or she may recommend to the principal a students’ 
suspension or expulsion from school. 

 
3.3.8 Possession or use of dangerous weapons or facsimile, explosives, firecrackers 

or other items capable of inflicting bodily harm are prohibited.  Discipline of 
students in possession of, or using, any weapons specified in RCW 9A.04.110 or 
local ordinances will be in a manner consistent with state law and regulations. 

 
3.3.9 Consistent with Board Policy 3246.  When an employee is threatened with injury, 

or comes to the aid of another person about to be injured, or other malicious 
interference with real or personal property which is in their possession, 

Packet page 46 of 84



8 

 

 

employees are authorized to use reasonable force upon or toward a student or 
other person as part of their assigned responsibilities. 

 
3.4     Health and Safety 

 
3.4.1 All bargaining unit employees have the right to a safe and healthy workplace. 
 
3.4.2 Any case of assault upon an employee shall be promptly reported to the 

employee’s supervisor. 
 
3.4.3 Employees shall not be required to work under unsafe or hazardous conditions; 

perform tasks that endanger their health, safety, or well-being; or operate unsafe 
vehicles or equipment. 

 
3.5 Personnel Files 

 
3.5.1 Employees shall, upon request, have the right to inspect the contents of their 

personnel file kept within the District office during regular business hours. The 
employee may request, in writing, a photocopy of materials in the file. The cost of 
any copies will be borne by the employee. 

 
3.5.2 Employees will be notified of any letters of reprimand or complaints against the 

employee which are entered into the personnel file.  Such notification shall be 
within ten (10) workdays of placement in the file.  The employee shall 
acknowledge receipt by signing and dating any disciplinary document placed in 
the employees personnel file. 

 
3.5.3 The employee shall have the opportunity to attach his/her own written 

comments to materials placed in the employee's personnel file.  Such material 
will be dated and signed by the employee. 

 
3.5.4 The district shall have only one personnel file.  No secret, duplicate, or alternate 

files may be used for disciplinary action. Supervisors shall not be precluded 
from maintaining informal working files subject to all of the above conditions. 

 
3.5.5 Any derogatory material will, at the request of the employee, be expunged after 

three (3) years, except evaluations shall not be removed from the file.  Information 
related to substantiated verbal abuse, physical abuse or sexual misconduct shall 
not be removed from any employee file. 

 
3.6 Due Process 
 

3.6.1 No employee covered under this Agreement will be disciplined or terminated 
without just cause. (Seven (7) Tests of Just Cause, Appendix 1.) 

 
3.6.2 Any complaint not called to the attention of the employee within ten (10) workdays 

may not be used as the basis of formal written disciplinary action. 
 

3.6.3 The specific grounds forming the basis of disciplinary action will be made 
available to the employee. 

 
3.6.4 An employee has the right to Association representation during disciplinary action. 

Packet page 47 of 84



9 

 

 

 
3.6.5 No scheduled disciplinary meeting may be delayed more than twenty-four (24) 

hours unless the parties mutually agree to the delay. 
 

3.6.6 In cases where the health, safety and well-being of students and other 
employees necessitates immediate disciplinary action, the District will notify 
the Association as soon as possible that action has been taken. 

 
3.6.7 Disciplinary action shall be taken in private. 

 
3.7 Assignments, Transfers, and Vacancies 
 

3.7.1 Notice of vacancies and new positions within the bargaining unit shall be posted 
electronically for not less than five (5) working days Association members will be 
responsible for checking the district website for openings. The Association 
president or designee will be provided with a copy of all job postings and will 
attempt to notify current members of the posting. 

 
3.7.2 Voluntary Transfer: 

Qualifications: Employees shall be selected for transfer on the basis of the 
following criteria and in the following order – seniority and qualifications. In-
building transfers shall occur before a vacancy is declared. The employee 
selected to transfer shall be the most senior, qualified employee.  In the event the 
job duties significantly evolve, the job will be reposted. 

 
3.7.3 Qualifications shall be defined as the skills and knowledge required for the posted 

position. The District shall be the sole judge of the posted qualifications.  Seniority 
shall be defined as the number of years of continuous service in a classification 
within Steilacoom Historical School District. If an employee changes from one 
classification to another, they retain their seniority in the former classification for 
two (2) years. 

 
3.7.4 Transfer Process:  In-district and out-of-district positions may be posted and 

received by the District at the same time.  However, out-of-district applications for 
open positions shall be placed in a separate file and shall not be considered in any 
way until all in- district employees have been notified of the results of their request 
for transfer. 

 
3.7.4.1 Senior employees within each building shall have the right to add 

additional hours to their schedules; provided they are qualified to fill the 
hours and they can fit them into their schedules.  The District shall 
assign to the most senior employee in the building extra time, one hour 
or under in length, without posting.  Assignments of a longer duration 
must be posted.  However, if a senior in-building employee has lost 
hours during a RIF, he/she shall have the first right to these hours as 
long as the RIF’d employee is the most senior, qualified, and the hours fit 
in his/her schedule. 

 
3.7.4.2 Whenever hours are reduced at a site, the least senior employee shall 

lose hours provided program requirements can be met and employee 
qualifications are substantially equal. An employee who lost hours 
has the right to a written explanation from the supervisor. One-on-one 
para- educators are excluded from this section. 

Packet page 48 of 84



10 

 

 

 
3.7.4.3 In the event summer hours become available the same procedures as 

noted in 3.7.4.1 and 3.7.4.2 shall apply. 
 

3.7.5 The applicant shall submit a written request for transfer to the district office within 
the time frame given in the posting. 

 
3.7.6 If one or more qualified, in-district employee applies for the position; all qualified 

employees shall be given an interview. The building administrator and/or the 
program director shall interview current qualified employees. 

 
3.7.7 In the event more than one qualified applicant meets the criteria listed above, the 

employee with the most seniority shall receive the position. If two qualified 
employees have the same seniority date, lot shall determine the successful 
candidate. 

 
3.7.8 In-district employees who are not selected for their requested transfer shall 

receive, in writing, the legitimate, specific, and demonstrable reasons for their 
denial within five (5) working days. 

 
3.8 Involuntary Transfer 
 

3.8.1 The District shall seek a pool of volunteers and provide a list of available 
positions before making an involuntary transfer.  If there are no volunteers, 
the process shall move to 3.8.2. 

 
3.8.2 Notice of an involuntary transfer shall be given to the affected employee as soon as 

such decision to transfer is determined. The employee with the least length of time 
in the District will be selected as long as employee qualifications are substantially 
equal. 

 
3.8.3 An involuntary transfer shall be made after the affected employee has been 

personally contacted by the building principal(s), supervisor, or the 
superintendent stating the specific reason(s) for the employee being selected for 
such a transfer. 

Packet page 49 of 84



11 

 

 

 

3.8.4 When requested, an employee chosen to be transferred during the school year 
shall be released from his/her duties for three (3) days at the employee's option, 
to prepare for the new assignment. The preparation time must be scheduled 
within one (1) week of the transfer date. 

 
3.8.5 The affected employee who is required to transfer during the school year may 

request the assistance of the maintenance department to help move the 
transferee's required materials. 

 
3.8.6 A notation of involuntary transfer shall be placed on the Employee's evaluation 

form. 
 
3.9 Moving to Another Building 
 

Employees who are requested to move to another building will be paid at the hourly rate 
for the number of hours that would equate to one full day for that employee. 

 
3.10 Training and In-service 

 
School year employees will be offered the opportunity to work three additional days for the 
purpose of district-directed professional development. These days will be prior to the start 
of the school year and be designated on the school calendar. 
 
In addition, all school based employees will be offered the opportunity to attend a training 
day designated on the school calendar in March. 
 
These days shall not impact employee access to Section 6.11 Training Pay. 

 
3.11 Hours of Work/Overtime 
 

3.11.1  The normal workweek shall consist of five (5) consecutive days, Monday through 
Friday. Each shift of five (5) or more hours per day shall include a thirty (30) minute 
duty free lunch period. Such lunch period shall be as near the middle of the shift as 
practical. Employees are free to leave the work site with notification to the Building 
Administrator. 

 
3.11.2  Each shift of five (5) or more hours shall include a fifteen (15) minute first half 

and fifteen (15) minute second half rest period, both of which rest periods shall 
occur as near to the middle of the shift as practical. Employees working less 
than five (5) hours per day shall receive a fifteen (15) minute break for each two 
and one-half (2 ½) hours worked. 

 
3.11.3  Hours worked which total more than forty (40) hours per week shall be 

compensated at the rate of one and one-half (1 ½) the employee’s hourly rate.  
Sundays and Holidays shall be at two (2) times the hourly rate. Overtime must be 
approved in advance by the supervisor or the superintendent/designee.  
(Custodians, Maintenance and Grounds shall receive overtime compensation after 
eight (8) hours per day. All employees are paid two and one-half (2 ½) times the 
hourly rate on Sundays and Holidays.) 

Packet page 50 of 84



12 

 

 

 

 
3.11.4  The senior custodian assigned to the building will be offered the first opportunity to 

receive the overtime in his/her building for normal custodial duties (excluding 
maintenance and alarm callouts). Should the senior employee not want the 
overtime or if he/she is not immediately available, the District will assign the 
overtime hours. 

 
3.11.5  Any employee, after having completed their regular shift, who has left their 

assigned work site and is directed to return to work, shall receive a minimum of two 
(2) hours pay at their regular rate. 

 
3.11.6  Each employee shall be assigned to a definite and regular shift and work week, 

which will not be changed without prior notice to the employees of one calendar 
week; provided, however, this notice may be waived by the employee. The 
employer may immediately assign a shift or work week change in the event of 
unusual circumstances or an emergency. 

 
3.11.7  Employees shall have the right to choose between overtime pay and 

compensatory time. Compensatory time may be accrued to twenty-four (24) 
hours. The District must insure that employees have the opportunity to use 
compensatory time within forty-five District business days, if chosen as an option. 
Compensatory time shall be accrued at the rate of one-and one-half (1 ½) hours 
worked. If the employee is not released to take compensatory time, he/she shall 
be paid for the time within the pay period and in no case later than the next pay 
period provided that the employee may choose at his/her option to carry twenty-
four (24) hours of compensatory time for no longer than one (1) year.  After one 
(1) year the employee shall be paid for the compensatory time not used. 

 
3.11.8  Voluntary work/workers:  Voluntary work and voluntary workers shall not be 

paid for by District funds. Voluntary work shall be formally approved by the 
School District Administration.  Volunteer work shall be of limited duration. A 
discussion shall be held with the Association president prior to the District 
granting approval for such work. 

 
3.11.9  In the event an employee is required to extend a work shift due to an activity or 

absence of another employee, compensation will be paid at the appropriate rate. 
 
3.11.10 To accommodate leaving at the end of the student day on half-days and other 

days with a modified schedule, employees may, with supervisor permission, flex 
their schedules, including the banking of hours, or use compensatory time 
(Section 3.11.7). 

 
3.11.11 Classified personnel will be provided a reasonable amount of time within their 

daily schedule for the purpose of checking and responding to email. The district  
will be responsible for providing access to computers for this purpose at each 
work site. 

3.12 Dispensing Student Medication 
Secretaries/clerks, para-educators, professional technical 
Employees shall not be required to dispense medicine or perform medical procedures on 
students except in accordance with District policy and State law. Employees who are 

Packet page 51 of 84



13 

 

 

 

required to dispense medication to students shall be trained at the District’s expense. 
Unless listed as a job duty in the original posting, the employee shall have the right to 
decline to dispense medication to students without losing his/her position. 

 
3.13 Notification of Job Assignment 

Employees shall be notified of their job assignment for the following year as soon as the 
District’s personnel needs are determined, but not later than June 5 of each year. 

 
3.14 Seniority/Probation 

 
3.14.1  Seniority shall consist of continuing service of the employee with the employer. 

The first sixty (60) days of employment shall be a probationary period during which 
time an employee shall not have seniority standing.  The probationary employee 
date of hire will be his/her date for computing seniority upon the successful 
completion of the probationary period. 

 
3.14.2  An employee shall lose seniority upon termination, resignation, retirement or 

transfer to a non-bargaining unit position. 
 

3.14.3 The employee shall hold seniority by classification. In case of a layoff, employees 
laid off in one classification will be able to bump into prior classification in which 
they hold seniority. 

 
3.14.4  Following is the list of conditions under which employees lose seniority: 

• Discharge for cause 
• Voluntary resignation 
• After one (1) year in the layoff pool 
• Transfer to non-bargaining unit work 

 
3.14.5  The District shall provide the Association with a seniority list of employees by 

December 1 of each year, and the seniority list will be organized by straight 
seniority and by seniority by classification. 

 
3.14.6  The District will provide, upon request, notification to the Association President of 

each new hire as soon as possible after initial employment. 
 
3.15 Inclement Weather 
 

3.15.1   In the event snow or hazardous weather or emergency forces school to close, 
classified employees who work directly with students and whose work depends 
on the presence of students are not required to report for work and will make up 
the day on the student make up day.  All employees working twelve (12) months 
and those who work for more than one hundred eighty (180) days in the work year 
are expected to work.  Employees who are unable to report to work because of 
hazardous conditions will meet with their immediate supervisor to determine when 
the snow days will be made up, or if the day(s) cannot be made up, which leave, 
personal leave or vacation, the day(s) will be charged to. 

 
3.15.2 If schools operate on a delayed schedule, the delay is for students and does not 

affect employee reporting times. Employees who are unable to report to work on 

Packet page 52 of 84



14 

 

 

 

time because of hazardous conditions will meet with their immediate supervisor to 
determine when the hours will be made up. School delay/closure procedures will 
be announced each year and practiced to ensure the procedure works correctly.  

 
3.16 Workload 
 

3.16.1  The District agrees to provide job descriptions for positions covered by this 
agreement to the president of the Association. Job descriptions that are modified 
by the District which reflect changes impacting the hours, wages, and working 
conditions of the employee and new job descriptions that are created by the 
District covering employees under the Agreement will be sent to the Association 
president and the employee. Additionally, the employees shall receive a copy of 
any changes in his/her job description two (2) weeks prior to the implementation 
of the changes. Employees shall be provided copies of their job description if 
requested. Employees shall receive a copy of his/her job description at the date 
of hire. 

 
ARTICLE IV:  GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 
 
4.1 Definition 
 

4.1.1 A grievance is an alleged misinterpretation of, misapplication of, or violation of 
terms and/or provisions of this agreement. A grievant shall mean an individual, 
a group of individuals and/or the Association. 

 
4.1.2 Nothing contained herein shall be construed as to limiting the right of any 

employee having a complaint to discuss the matter informally with his/her 
immediate supervisor. 

 
4.2 Procedure for Processing Grievances 

 
4.2.1 Step One – Informal Process:  The employee shall first discuss the grievance with 

his/her immediate supervisor. If the employee wishes, he/she may be 
accompanied by an Association representative at such discussion. 

 
4.2.2 Step Two - Immediate Supervisor:   If the grievance is not settled in Step One, a 

written statement of grievance shall be presented to the immediate supervisor 
within thirty (30) working days after the occurrence of the grievance. (Grievance 
Form, Attachment 3). The immediate supervisor shall answer the grievance in 
writing. The immediate supervisor shall include the reasons upon which the 
decision was based, and shall respond within (7) working days of receiving the 
grievance.  A copy of the decision shall be sent to the grievant and the Association 
president. 

 
4.2.3    Step Three - Superintendent: 
 

4.2.3.1 If no satisfactory settlement is reached at Step Two, the grievance may 
be appealed to Step Three, Superintendent, or his/her designated 
representative, within seven (7) working days of receipt of the decision 
rendered in Step Two. 

Packet page 53 of 84



15 

 

 

 

 
4.2.3.2 The Superintendent or his designated representative shall arrange for a 

grievance meeting with the grievant(s) and/or Association representative 
and such meeting shall be scheduled within seven (7) working days of 
the receipt of the Step Three Appeal. The purpose of this meeting shall 
be to affect a resolution of the grievance. 

 
4.2.3.3 The Superintendent, or his designated representative, shall provide a 

written decision, incorporating the reasons upon which the decision was 
based to the grievant(s), Association representative and immediate 
supervisor within seven (7) working days from the conclusion of the 
meeting. 

 
4.3  Arbitration 
 

4.3.1 If no satisfactory settlement is reached at Step Three, the Association, within 
fifteen (15) working days of the receipt of the Step Three decision, may appeal the 
final decision of the employer to the American Arbitration Association for 
arbitration. Any grievance arising out of or relating to terms, interpretation and/or 
application of the provisions of this Agreement may be submitted to arbitration 
unless specifically and expressly excluded from this Article. The Arbitrator shall 
hold a hearing within twenty (20) working days of his/her appointment. Ten (10) 
working days’ notice shall be given to both parties of the time and place of the 
hearing. The Arbitrator will issue his/her decision within twenty (20) days from the 
date final written briefs have been submitted or if revised by both Parties, twenty 
(20) days after completion of the hearing. 

 
4.3.2 The Arbitrator's decision will be in writing and will set forth his/her findings of 

fact, reasoning, and conclusions on the issues submitted to him/her.  The 
decision of the Arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the Employer, the 
Association, and the Grievant(s). 

 
4.4 Jurisdiction of the Arbitrator 

The Arbitrator shall be without power or authority to add to, subtract from, or alter any of 
the terms of this Agreement, or award damages.  (Make whole remedies shall not be 
considered damages.) The Arbitrator shall have no power or authority to rule on the 
following:  any matter involving Employee evaluation or Reduction in Force, provided 
however that the Evaluation and Reduction in Force Procedures shall be subject to the 
Arbitrator's review. The Arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make any decision 
which requires the commission of an act prohibited by Law. 
 

4.5 Time Limits 
 

4.5.1 Time limits provided in this procedure may be extended by mutual agreement 
when signed by the Parties. 

 
4.5.2  Failure on the part of the Employer, at any step of this procedure, to 

communicate the decision on a grievance within the specific time limit shall 
permit the Association to lodge an appeal at the next step of this procedure. 

 

Packet page 54 of 84



16 

 

 

 

4.5.3    Any grievance not advanced by the grievant from one step to the next within the 
time limits of that step shall be deemed resolved in accordance with the 
Employer's answer at the previous step. 

 
4.6 Accelerated Grievance Filing 

In order to expedite grievance adjudication, the Parties agree that any Association 
grievances or class action grievances may be lodged at Step Three of this procedure.  In 
any case, the grievance must be filed within thirty (30) working days after the occurrence 
of the grievance. Any grievance that has been filed prior to the termination date of this 
Contract may be processed to conclusion even if the Contract has expired. 

 
4.7 Reprisals 

No reprisals of any kind will be taken by any Party against any Party because of 
participation in any grievance. 

 
4.8 Costs 

The fees and expenses of the Arbitrator shall be shared equally by the Parties.  All 
other expenses shall be borne by the Party incurring them. 

 
ARTICLE V:  EVALUATION 
 
5.1 All classified personnel shall be evaluated annually, such evaluations to be 

completed and presented to the employee in person no later than June 1 of the 
school year in which the evaluation takes place. The intent of this language is for 
the supervisor to meet with the employee in all cases. 

 
5.1.1 His/her immediate supervisor shall evaluate each employee. 

 
5.1.2 An employee shall be given a draft copy of any evaluation form prepared by 

his/her evaluator before any conference is held to discuss it. No evaluation 
form shall be submitted to the district office, placed in the employee’s 
personnel file or otherwise acted upon, without prior conference with the 
employee. 

 
 

5.1.3 Employees shall be notified of any deficiencies. When a supervisor has a concern 
about the employee’s performance, the supervisor shall notify the employee in a 
timely manner.  If deficiencies continue, the supervisor shall provide the employee 
a specific plan for improvement which includes a written notice and a minimum of 
two (2) months for the employee to improve. The employee will have an 
opportunity to write a rebuttal to his/her evaluation. 

 
5.2 Each employee shall be evaluated on the evaluation form. (Performance Evaluation, 

Attachment 4.) 
  

 
 
 
ARTICLE VI: ECONOMIC PROVISIONS 

Packet page 55 of 84



17 

 

 

 

 
6.1 Salary 

 
6.1.1 For the 2018-19 school year the wage rates on Attachment 5 shall be increased 

by the previous year’s annual average consumer price index, using the official 
current base compiled by the Bureau of Labor Statistics, United States 
Department of Labor, for the City of Seattle. 

 
6.1.2 The rate of pay for classified substitutes shall be equal to eight-five percent (85%) 

of Step 1 of the position being filled. 
 

6.2 All employees shall be paid over a twelve (12) month period. Paychecks shall be issued 
on the last District business day of each month. If the employee works less than three 
(3) hours per day, basic salaries shall be made in ten (10) monthly installments.  In 
December, pay warrants will be made available on the District’s last business day. 

 
6.2.1 Pay warrant stubs shall include the following information: 

• Base salaries 
• Individual payroll deductions 
• Overtime pay 
• Sick leave accumulations and amount used 
• Personal leave 
• Vacation accumulations and amount used 

 
6.3 The Association and the District shall form a joint committee to research and develop a 

Training Stipend Program. The intent of this committee shall be to develop a program for 
paying stipends to employees for job appropriate training, licenses, or conferences. 

 
6.4 Employees may request the monthly warrant/check be deposited to his/her bank 

account or forwarded to a specific address.  The District may require specific 
authorization. 

 
6.5 Employees assigned by the District to work on a job regularly filled by a higher 

classification employee shall receive compensation equal to the employee in the higher 
classification based on the experienced step of the substitute employee after three (3) 
days. Any employee substituting in a position at a lower rate of pay shall receive their 
current rate of pay for the time spent substituting in the lower paid position. 

 
6.5.1 In the event that an employee is assigned as a certificated substitute, the employee 

will receive his/her regular rate of pay plus three dollars ($3.00) per hour or the 
certificated substitute rate of pay, whichever is higher, for the time spent 
substituting. The employee will submit the hours on a timesheet. Willingness to 
serve as a certificated substitute will not be negatively referenced on an 
employee’s classified evaluation. 

 
6.6 When acting in accordance with assigned duties or when requested by the District to 

travel when using his/her own private vehicle, an employee shall be reimbursed for such 
travel at the current IRS rate. 

 
6.7 Insurance coverage for employees who use their own vehicle at the direction of the District 

Packet page 56 of 84



18 

 

 

 

shall be insured in accordance with the current District policy in effect at that time. 
 
6.8 If so directed by the District, employees will fill out daily time records. Mileage forms 

will be provided to each employee who travels to perform their job responsibilities. 
 
6.9 All compensations owed to an employee who is leaving the District shall, upon request, 

be paid on the next regular pay day after the final day of employment and in no case later 
than the following payday. 

 
6.10    Longevity Pay 

Longevity Steps: Employees are eligible to be placed on step 5 upon completion of four (4) 
years employment within the bargaining unit. Employees are eligible to be placed at step 
10 upon completion of nine (9) years within the bargaining unit. Employees are eligible to 
be places at step 15 upon completion of fourteen (14) years within the bargaining unit. 
Employees are eligible to be placed at step 20 upon completion of nineteen (19) years 
within the bargaining unit. 
Longevity payments will be made at the start of each year in which an employee earns the 
benefit. 

 
6.11 Training Pay 

Each annual employee may participate in building-approved training equal to three (3) of 
their regular work days, to be paid at their regularly hourly rate and in accordance with 
FLSA and MWA (i.e. 8 hour employees will be entitled to 24 hours of training; 4 hour 
employees will be entitled to 12 hours of training). School year employees may participate 
in two (2) days of building-approved training opportunities. Training may be claimed in 
hourly increments. Should an employee choose not to attend non-mandatory training, they 
will not be compensated. 

 
6.12 Fringe Benefits 
 

6.12.1  Each employee shall receive the State allocated amount for insurance, except that 
the retired employees carve-out shall be remitted to the State. The District shall 
pay one hundred (100) percent of the retiree subsidy (carve out) for each 
employee for each year of this agreement. Part Time employees shall receive a 
pro-rated share of the retiree subsidy. The District shall provide all insurance 
money funded by the State each year based on 1440 hours per year. Employees 
less than 1440 hours will receive a pro rata share of the FTE contributions based 
on their FTE percentage. 

 
6.12.2  The monthly premium shall be used to provide the programs listed 

below:  
 

Primary plans 
• Steilacoom Historical School District self-funded Dental and Vision: 

Administered by Trusteed Plans Services Corp. 
• Willamette Dental 
• WEA Select Group Life Insurance (mandatory) 
• Hartford (Long-term Disability) 

Medical Options: 

Packet page 57 of 84



19 

 

 

 

• Premera Blue Cross Medical Plans 
• Kaiser Permanente 

Voluntary Plans: 
• Optional Voluntary Term Life 
• American Fidelity Salary Insurance 
• Section 125: Flexible spending accounts 
• Other voluntary benefits 

 
6.13 Employer Liability Policy 

For the term of the insurance policy currently in effect, the District will provide excess 
liability coverage for an employee's vehicle while it is being used in the scope and 
course of the employee's assigned duties.  The limits of liability insurance carried by the 
individual employee must be exhausted in order to trigger insurance coverage.  District 
insurance will not provide coverage for physical damage to employee's vehicles. 

 
6.14 Premium Reduction Fund 

 
6.14.1  After all premiums are paid in compliance with the above provisions, any balance 

remaining of the State funded amount per month per FTE shall be called a 
Premium Reduction Fund and shall be retained by the District and used in the 
following month(s) to decrease the payroll deduction experienced by bargaining 
unit members. During the month of September the parties to this Agreement shall 
meet to determine how much additional money, if any, is available for this 
Premium Reduction Fund and what shall be an equitable manner in which to 
distribute such money. 

 
6.14.2  The employer agrees to expend the entire aggregate amount of money 

generated by the Premium Reduction Fund. The District and the Association 
shall meet again in February to review pooling expenditures and make 
adjustments if necessary. 

 
6.15 Payroll Deductions 

 
6.15.1   Employees may request payroll deductions for the following: 

• United Way 
• Credit Union loan payments 
• Educational Employees Credit Union 
• Washington School Employees Credit Union 
• Tax Sheltered Annuities 
• Deferred Compensation Plans 

 
6.15.2 Other payroll deductions may be discussed at the Payroll Office. 

 
Article VII:  HOLIDAYS AND VACATIONS 

 
7.1 Vacations  

 
7.1.1 Annual employees will earn vacation days according to the following schedule: 

 

Packet page 58 of 84



20 

 

 

 

7.1.1.1 Ten (10) days’ vacation can be earned annually during the first three 
(3) years of continuous employment. 
 

7.1.1.2 After the third (3rd) year of continuous employment, the employee will 
be entitled to fifteen (15) days of annual vacation per year through five 
(5) years of continuous employment. 
 

7.1.1.3 The employee will earn one (1) additional day of annual leave each 
year from six (6) to ten (10) years of employment. 

 
7.1.1.4 Twenty (20) days’ vacation leave is the maximum earned in a year. 

 
7.1.2 Employees may accumulate vacation time to the limit of twenty-five (25) days. 

 
7.1.3     An employee who leaves the District shall receive their pro-rated vacation 

benefits at the time of termination of employment. Twenty-five (25) days of 
accrued vacation is the maximum that will be paid to an employee terminating 
employment. 

 
7.1.4 Employees shall consult with their immediate supervisor to ensure adequate 

coverage of job responsibilities when scheduling vacations greater than five (5) 
days in length. Such consultation shall occur at least five (5) days prior to the start 
of the vacation, except in cases of emergency. 

7.1.5 Employees are encouraged, when foreseeable, to schedule vacation leave in a 
manner that avoids critical usage periods, including days immediately preceding or 
following school breaks. 

7.2 Paid Holidays 
 

All employees shall receive the following paid holidays which fall within their work year: 
• New Year’s Day 
• Martin Luther King Day 
• Presidents’ Day 
• Memorial Day 
• Labor Day 
• Veteran’s Day 
• Thanksgiving Day 
• Day after Thanksgiving 
• Christmas Eve Day 
• Christmas Day 
• Independence Day (Independence Day shall be paid to all regular 

employees who work the day before the holiday) 
 

To accommodate leaving at the end of the student day prior to Thanksgiving, employees 
may flex their schedule as agreed to with their supervisor. 

 
7.3 Un-worked Holidays 

Eligible employees shall receive pay equal to their normal work shift at their base rate in 

Packet page 59 of 84



21 

 

 

 

effect at the time the holiday occurs. An employee who is on the active payroll on the 
holiday and has worked his/her last shift preceding and following the holiday, and is not 
on unpaid leave of absence, shall be eligible for pay for such un-worked holiday. 

 
7.4 Worked Holidays 

Employees who are requested to work on the above described holidays and who do 
work, shall receive two (2) times their base rate of pay for all hours worked on such 
holidays. (Two and one-half (2 ½) times the base rate of pay for custodians, 
maintenance and grounds.) 

 
ARTICLE VIII:  LEAVES 
 
8.1 Sick Leave 

 
8.1.1  In the case of absences caused or necessitated by personal illness, temporary 

disability or injury of employee or family member, or because of quarantine in the 
immediate family, this sick leave provision shall apply. Disabilities immediately 
related to childbearing shall be considered temporary disabilities. 

 
8.1.2 At the beginning of each work year, each employee shall be credited with an 

advance sick leave allowance of up to twelve (12) days in accordance with their 
FTE allowance. 

 
8.1.3 Employees shall be allowed to accumulate unused sick leave to the legal maximum 

limit. 
 

8.1.4 At the end of each calendar year, the District will provide each employee with 
an accounting of their accumulated sick leave and all transactions concerning 
their sick leave days within that time period. 

 
8.1.5 An employee who is unable to perform his/her duties because of personal illness, 

maternity or other disability may, upon request, be granted a leave of absence 
without pay at the exhaustion of sick leave. Leaves for these conditions may be 
renewed annually at the District's determination, if requested. 

 
8.1.6 Whenever an Employee is absent from employment and unable to perform duties 

as a result of personal injury sustained in the course of employment, the 
employee may choose between using sick leave benefits or State Worker’s 
Compensation. 

 
8.1.7 In the event the Employee chooses to use State benefits, the time absent will 

not be charged against annual or accumulated sick leave. 
 
8.2 Annual Sick Leave Cash-Out 

Employees are allowed to cash in unused sick leave days above an accumulation of sixty 
(60) full days at a ratio of one full day of monetary compensation for four (4) accumulated 
sick leave days.  At the employee's option, they can cash-out their unused sick leave days 
in January of the school year following any year in which a minimum of sixty (60) days of 
sick leave is accrued and each January thereafter, at a rate equal to one day's monetary 
compensation of the employee for each four (4) full days of accrued sick leave in excess 

Packet page 60 of 84



22 

 

 

 

of sixty (60) days. The employee's sick leave accumulation shall be reduced four (4) days 
for each day compensated. 

 
8.3 Sick Leave Cash-Out at Retirement or Death 

At the time of separation from school district employment due to retirement or death, an 
eligible employee, or the employee's estate, shall receive remuneration at a rate equal 
to one (1) day's current monetary compensation of the employee for each four (4) full 
days accrued sick leave. 

 
8.4 Family and Medical Leave Act 
 Employees shall be allowed to use available sick leave when needed to care for a child 

with a health condition needing treatment or supervision, and for a serious or 
emergency health condition of the employee’s spouse, parent, parent-in-law, or 
grandparent. (Family Medical Leave Act - Attachment 6.) 

 
8.5 Family Care Leave 

Employees shall be allowed to use all available sick leave or other paid time off to care for 
the employee’s spouse, parent, parent-in-law, or grandparent, in addition to a sick child. 

 
8.6 Maternity Leave 

This leave shall begin at a time agreed upon by the employee and her physician. A 
written request for maternity leave should include a statement as to the expected date 
of return to employment. Employees may be granted additional leave, if there are 
circumstances altering the expected date of return to work.  Any employee who uses up 
sick leave under this section may apply for a leave of absence without pay. 

 

8.7 Adoption Leave 
Adoption leave with pay shall be granted upon prior application to the District by a parent 
in order to complete the adoption process, providing such leave does not exceed an 
aggregate of three (3) days in any given year. Such leave may be used for court legal 
procedures, home study and evaluation, and required home visitations by the adoption 
agent not possible to schedule outside of the regular working hours. 

 
8.8 Bereavement Leave 

Absence owing to death in the immediate family shall be granted with full pay for up to five 
(5) consecutive days. Immediate family shall be defined as the following family 
relationships to either the employee or their spouse/domestic partner: father and mother, 
parent surrogate, spouse/domestic partner, children, siblings, grandparents, grandchildren, 
aunts and uncles, nephews and nieces, and any relative or significant other residing in the 
employee's household. One (1) day of bereavement leave will be allowed for a close 
friend. At the discretion of the superintendent, two (2) additional days of bereavement 
leave may be granted for close friends for the purposes of extended travel and or 
extenuating circumstances. 

 
8.9 Judicial Leave 

An employee who is summoned to serve as a juror or is obliged to appear in court as a 
party of subpoenaed witness shall notify his/her immediate supervisor immediately upon 
learning of the need for leave. For jury duty, the employee shall receive normal pay, 
provided that any jury duty pay will be paid to the District.  An employee who must be 
absent for judicial proceedings as a party will be entitled to leave without pay. An 

Packet page 61 of 84



23 

 

 

 

employee who is subpoenaed as a witness shall be granted leave with normal pay, with 
any witness fees remitted to the District. 
 
In the event the Association, or other party financially supported by the Association, 
brings suit against the District, the Association shall reimburse the district the per diem 
pay of any employee covered by this Agreement. 

 
8.10 Military Leave 

Employees shall be granted military leaves of absence in accordance with law. 
 
8.11 Personal Leave 

Personal leave shall not exceed two (2) days annually, accumulative to four. 
 
8.12 Association Leave 

The Association shall be allowed up to eighteen (18) days of absence per year for 
professional meetings and business of the Association. The Association shall give the 
District five (5) days advance notice, whenever possible, of the proposed absence. 

 
The Association shall reimburse the District for the cost of a substitute if a substitute is 
required. 

 
8.13 Other Leaves 

Leaves of absence up to one (1) year without pay may be granted to employees for child 
care, child rearing, health reasons, professional development or such other reason as 
agreed to by the District. 
 
The employee, if granted such leave, upon return, may be placed in a similar 
position as determined by the District. Such leaves shall not extend beyond one 
year. 

 
8.14 Leave Sharing 
 

8.14.1 Employees are granted the right to donate sick leave to come to the aid of another 
employee who is suffering from an extraordinary or severe illness, injury, 
impairment or physical or mental condition which has caused or is likely to cause 
the employee to take leave without pay or terminate his or her employment. 

 
8.14.2 An employee who has an accrued sick leave balance of more than sixty (60) 

days is allowed to transfer sick leave to another employee as specified in 
8.14.1. 

 
8.14.3  Employees are allowed to donate up to six (6) days during any twelve (12) 
  month period. 

  
8.14.4 An employee cannot donate sick leave days that would result in his/her sick 

leave account going below sixty (60) days. 
 

8.14.5 Sick leave includes leave accrued pursuant to the RCWs with compensation for 
illness, injury and emergencies. 

Packet page 62 of 84



24 

 

 

 

 
8.14.6 While an employee is on leave, he/she shall be classified as an employee and 

receive the same treatment in respect to salary, wages, and employee benefits as 
the employee would normally receive if using accrued personal leave or sick leave. 

 
ARTICLE IX: LAY OFF AND RECALL 
 
9.1 In the event the District reduces classified staffing by reason of program need, 

financial necessity, such as levy failure and/or decreased State or Federal 
support, the least senior employee within the impacted job classification(s) shall 
lose hours or be subject to layoff. The term “layoff” used herein refers to action 
by the Board reducing the number of employees in the bargaining unit, owing to 
financial restriction or program change. 

 
9.2 In the event that layoff becomes necessary, the District shall first determine which 

employees will be retained because of special skills and/or qualifications relating to District 
programs. The District shall provide the Association with a list of the positions that will be 
impacted by no later than June 5. The District will work with the Association to minimize 
the impact. The District and Association shall review the seniority list of employees in 
each classification. 

 
9.3 The District will make all reasonable attempts to assure that no new employee will be 

employed by the District while there are laid off employees who are qualified for the 
vacant or newly created position. The District will provide notification, prior to the posting, 
of any new position, to the Association at labor management meetings of any vacant 
position that could result in the hiring of a new employee. 

 
9.4 Reduction In Force Procedure: 
 

9.4.1 Employees will be laid off on the basis of seniority by classification. 
 

9.4.2 Seniority shall be defined as the length of service within the District as a member 
of the bargaining unit. 

 
9.4.3 Senior employees whose positions have been eliminated due to reductions in 

force or who have lost hours as a result of a reduction in force shall be identified 
as displaced and shall have the right to assume any vacant position within their 
classification for which they have seniority, and qualifications. All displaced 
employees must be placed when possible. 

 
9.4.4 Any temporary hours that are created or added subsequent to a reduction in force 

are to be offered to Association members by seniority, and qualification who have 
lost hours as a result of reduction in force prior to hiring of any temporary 
employees. 

 
9.4.5 Positions that have become vacant due to attrition (new positions, positions 

vacated by transfer, separation from the District, or retirement) will then be open to 
all current Association employees including recently displaced employees following 
the process stated in Section 3.6 Assignment, Transfer, and Vacancies. 

 

Packet page 63 of 84



25 

 

 

 

9.4.6 Employees shall hold seniority by classification. In case of a layoff, employees laid 
off in one classification will be able to bump into a prior classification in which they 
hold seniority. The employee retains their seniority in the former classification for 
two (2) years. 

 
9.4.7 Unused sick leave shall be restored to the RIF’d employee upon return to active 

employment. Other benefits will be reinstated as appropriate to the position held. 
The employee will be reinstated at the same step on the salary schedule. 

 
9.4.8 Employees shall not be bumped or reduced in hours by school employees who 

are not represented by the bargaining unit. 
 
9.5 In the event that individuals have the same seniority ranking, the employees so affected 

shall participate in a drawing by lot to determine seniority position. The Association and 
all employees so affected shall be notified in writing of the date, time, and place for the 
drawing. The drawing shall be conducted openly and at a time and place which will allow 
affected employees and the Association to be in attendance. 
 

9.6 The parties shall meet annually, no later than December 1, to update the bargaining 
unit seniority list. 
 

9.7 Employees to be laid off shall receive advance written notice of no less than fifteen (15) 
calendar days. 

 
9.8 Employees having additional skills and/or qualifications may report such skills and/or 

qualifications in writing to the personnel office by March 1. Written verification of skills 
and qualifications is required annually. 

 
9.9 Employees who are laid off shall be placed in a re-employment pool for two (2) years. 

Recall shall first be based on seniority and by qualifications relating to the District position 
to be filled. The District shall give employees written notice of recall from layoff by sending 
a registered or certified letter to the recalled employee at his/her last known address. If 
the employee does not respond within ten (10) business days of such notice of recall, the 
employee shall forfeit right of recall. The employee's address as it appears on the Board's 
records shall be conclusive when used in connection with layoffs, recall, or other notice to 
employees. 

 
9.10 While in the employment pool, a person may continue in the District fringe benefit 

programs for which they are legally qualified. Such continuance shall require 
reimbursement to the District of the District's costs of the program(s), in advance, by the 
first day of each month. Failure to reimburse the District by the first day of the month shall 
result in being dropped from the program(s). 

 
  

Packet page 64 of 84



26 

 

 

 

ARTICLE X: DURATION 
 
10.1 The terms and agreements set forth in this contract will be in effect from September 1, 

2017 until August 31, 2019, or until such time as a new contract is collaboratively 
bargained between the Association and District. 

 
Attest: 
 
ASSOCIATION      DISTRICT 
 
 
____________________________________  _________________________________ 
Chair       Board Chair 
 
 
 
____________________________________  __________________________________ 
Date       Date 
 
 
 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Superintendent 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Date 
 
   
 
 
  

Packet page 65 of 84



27 

 

 

 

Attachment 1 – Seven Test of Just Cause 
 
Just Cause/Seven Key Tests 
 
The basic elements of just cause, which different arbitrators have emphasized, have been reduced 
by Arbitrator Carrol R. Daugherty to seven tests.  These test, in the form of questions, represent the 
most specifically articulated analysis of the just cause standard as well as an extremely practical 
approach. 
 
A “no” answer to one or more of the questions may mean that just cause either was not satisfied or at 
least was seriously weakened in that some arbitrary, capricious or discriminatory element was 
present. 
 
Notice:  “Did the employer give to the employee forewarning or foreknowledge o the possible or 
probable consequences of the employee’s disciplinary conduct?” 
 
Reasonable Rule or Order:  “Was the employer’s rules or managerial order reasonably related to a) 
the orderly, efficient, and safe operation of the employer’s business and b) the performance that the 
employer might properly expect of the employee?” 
 
Investigation:  “Did the employer before administering the discipline to an employee, make an effort to 
discover whether the employee did in fact violate or disobey a rule or order of management?” 
 
Fair Investigation:  “Was the employer’s investigation conducted fairly and objectively?” 
 
Proof:  “at the investigation, did the ‘judge’ obtain substantial evidence or proof that the employee was 
guilty as charged?” 
 
Equal Treatment:  “Has the employer applied its rules, order, and penalties even-handedly and 
without discrimination to all employees?” 
 
Penalty:  “Was the degree of discipline administered by the employer in a particular case reasonable 
related to the following?: 

a) the seriousness of the employee’s proven offense, and 
b) the record of the employee in his service with the Employer?” 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Packet page 66 of 84



28 

 

 

 

Attachment 2 – Grievance Form 

 
STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 

511 Chambers 
Steilacoom, WA 98388 

 
This form is to be used by a classified employee when filing a grievance review according to 
ARTICLE IV of the current Collective Bargaining Agreement.  This same form must be used 
at each step and submitted in duplicate. 
 
 
TO: ______________________________________________________________________ 
  Name       Title 
 
 
FROM: ____________________________________________________________________ 
  Grievant’s Name     Position 
 
 
LOCATION: ________________________________________________________________ 
  Building      Department 
 

1. State the specific grievance.  (Include Article and Section of the Collective Bargaining 
Agreement.) 

 
2. State the grievance.  (Include time, place, parties involved, witnesses.) 

 
 

3. The relief sought. 
 

 
Grievant’s signature_________________________________ Date_____________ 
 
 
Supervisor’s signature_______________________________ Date_____________ 
 
 
 
Supportive documents may be attached 

Packet page 67 of 84



29 

 

 

 

 

Packet page 68 of 84



30 

 

 

 

 

Packet page 69 of 84



31 

 

 

 

Attachment 4 – Family Medical Leave Act 
 
Employee Eligibility 
To be eligible for FMLA leave, an employee must: 

• Have worked for that employer for at least 12 months; and 
• Have worked at least 1,250 hours during the 12 months prior to the start of the FMLA leave 

 
Leave Entitlement 
A covered employer must grant an eligible employee up to a total of 12 workweeks of unpaid leave in a 12 
month period for one or more of the following reasons: 

• For the birth of a son or daughter, and to care for the newborn child; 
• For the placement with the employee of a child for adoption or foster care, and to care for the newly 

placed child; 
• To care for an immediate family member (spouse, child, or parent – but not a parent “in-law”) with a 

serious health condition; 
• When the employee is unable to work because of a serious health condition. 

 
Leave to care for a newborn child or for a newly placed child must conclude within 12 months after the birth or 
placement. (See CFR Section 825.201) 
 
Spouses employed by the same employer may be limited to a combined total of 12 workweeks of family leave 
for the following reasons: 

• Birth and care of a child; 
• For the placement of a child for adoption or foster care, and to care for the newly placed child; 
• To care for an employee’s parent who has a serious health condition. 

 
Intermittent/Reduced Schedule Leave – The FMLA permits employees to take leave on an intermittent basis 
or to work a reduced schedule under certain circumstances. (CFR Section 203)  Intermittent/reduced schedule 
leave may be taken when medically necessary to care for a seriously ill family member, or because of the 
employee’s serious health condition.  Intermittent/reduced schedule leave may be taken to care for a newborn 
or newly placed adopted or foster care child only with the employer’s approval. 
 
Employees needing intermittent/reduced schedule leave for foreseeable medical treatment must work with their 
employers to schedule the leave so as not to unduly disrupt the employer’s operations, subject to the approval 
of the employee’s health care provider.  In such cases, the employer may transfer the employee temporarily to 
an alternative job with equivalent pay and benefits that accommodates recurring periods of leave better than the 
employee’s regular job. 
 
Substitution of Paid Leave – Employees may choose to use accrued paid leave to cover some or all of the 
FMLA leave taken 
Serious Health Condition – “Serious health condition” means an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or 
mental condition that involves either: 
 

• Any period of incapacity or treatment connected with inpatient care (i.e., an overnight stay) in a hospital, 
hospice, or residential medical care facility, and any period of incapacity or subsequent treatment in 
connection with such inpatient care; or 

• Continuing treatment by health care provider which includes any period of incapacity (i.e., inability to 
work, attend school or perform other regular daily activities). 

Packet page 70 of 84



32 

 

 

 

This could include, but is not limited to, pregnancy, prenatal care, chronic health conditions such as asthma or 
diabetes, and permanent or long-term conditions such as Alzheimer’s, stroke or cancer. 
 
Medical Certification – An employer may require that the need for leave for a serious health condition of the 
employee or the employee’s immediate family member be supported by a certification issued by a health care 
provider.  The employer must allow the employee at least 15 calendar days to obtain the medical certification.  
An employer may, at its own expense, require the employee to obtain a second medical certification from a 
health care provider. 
 
Maintenance of Health Benefits 
A covered employer is required to maintain group health insurance coverage, including family coverage, for an 
employee on FMLA leave on the same terms as if the employee continued to work. 
 
Job Restoration 
Upon return from FMLA leave, an employee must be restored to his or her original job, or to an “equivalent” job, 
which means virtually identical to the original job in terms of pay, benefits, and other employment terms and 
conditions. 
 
Notice 
Employee Notice – Eligible employees seeking to use FMLA leave should request leave as soon as possible. 
 
Other Provisions 
Teacher may not be able to take intermittent or reduced-scheduled leave for planned medical treatment that 
may take them out of the classroom for more than 20% of the time.  In such cases, the employee may be 
required to take continuous leave for the entire treatment period depending on the nature of the medical 
condition and classroom needs. 
 
Teachers and educational assistants also may not be able to return from leave near the end of the school term.  
Depending on the timing and the reason for the leave, the district can require the employee to extend their leave 
and return at the beginning of the next term, rather than in the closing days of the current term. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Packet page 71 of 84



33 

 

 

 

Attachment 5 – 2017-18 Salary Schedule 

 

Packet page 72 of 84



 OF DIRECTORS 
 

STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Board Meeting Date: 9/27/2017 

Strategic Focus Area 

☐  Teaching and Learning        

☒   Safety, Service and Support  

☐  Family & Community Involvement 

☐  Resource Management         

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
First Reading of Policy 3115 Homeless Students: Enrollment Rights and Services 
WSSDA policy update includes two new sections: 

1. Facilitating on-time grade level progression which includes: 
a. Waive courses required for graduation if similar coursework has been satisfactorily 

completed in another district 
b. Consolidate partial credit, unresolved and incomplete coursework 
c. Opportunities to accrue credit 
d. Granting of partial credits 
e. Graduation alternatives 

2. Informed consent for healthcare may be obtained from school nurse, school counselor, 
homeless student liaison, as: 
a. Consent is necessary for non-emergency, outpatient, exams, etc. 
b. The student is not under the supervision or control of a parent, DSHS, etc. 
c. No authorized to consent employees will be subject to administrative sanctions of civil 

damages 
  
No sections of this policy are being deleted. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
It is the recommendation of the Superintendent to move Policy 3115 to a second reading. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report prepared by: 
Nancy McClure, Executive Director of Assessment and Intervention 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
  

Packet page 73 of 84



Page 1 of 6 

Policy No. 3115 
Students 

HOMELESS STUDENTS: ENROLLMENT 
RIGHTS AND SERVICES 

 

To the extent practical and as required by law, the district will work with homeless students and 
their families to provide them with equal access to the same free, appropriate education 
(including public preschool education) provided to other students. Special attention will be given 
to ensuring the identification, enrollment and attendance of homeless students not currently 
attending school, as well as mitigating educational barriers to their academic success. 
Additionally, the district will take reasonable steps to ensure that homeless students are not 
stigmatized or segregated in a separate school or in a separate program within a school on the 
basis of their homeless status.  
 
 

Homeless students will be provided district services for which they are eligible, including Head 
Start and comparable pre-school programs, Title I, similar state programs, special education, 
bilingual education, vocational and technical education programs, gifted and talented programs 
and school nutrition programs. 

Homeless students are defined as lacking a fixed, regular and adequate nighttime residence, 
including those students who are: 

A. Sharing the housing of other persons due to loss of housing or economic hardship, or a 
similar reason; 

B. Living in motels, hotels, trailer parks or camping grounds due to the lack of alternative 
adequate accommodations; 

C. Living in emergency or transitional shelters; 
D. Abandoned in hospitals; 
E. Living in public or private places not designed for or ordinarily used as regular sleeping 

accommodation; 
F. Living in cars, parks, public spaces, abandoned buildings, substandard housing, 

transportation stations or similar settings; or 
G. Migratory children living in conditions described in the previous examples. 

G.  

The superintendent will designate an appropriate staff person to be the district’s McKinney-
Vento liaison for homeless students and their families. The liaison may simultaneously serve as a 
coordinator for other federal programs, provided that they are able to carry out the duties listed in 
the procedure that accompanies this policy.  

If the district has identified more than ten unaccompanied youth, meaning youth not in the 
physical custody of a parent or guardian and including youth living on their own in any of the 
homeless situations described in the McKinney-Vento Homeless Education Act, the principal of 
each middle and high school building will establish a point of contact for such youth.  The point 
of contact is responsible for identifying homeless and unaccompanied youth and connecting 
them with the district’s homeless student liaison.  The district’s homeless student liaison is 
responsible for training the building points of contact.  

Packet page 74 of 84



Page 2 of 6 

Policy No. 3115 
Students 

 
  

Best interest determination 
In making a determination as to which school is in the homeless student’s best interest to attend, 
the district will presume that it is in the student’s best interest to remain enrolled in their school 
of origin unless such enrollment is against the wishes of a parent, guardian or unaccompanied 
youth.  
 

Attendance options will be made available to homeless families on the same terms as families 
resident in the district, including attendance rights acquired by living in attendance areas, other 
student assignment policies, and intra and inter-district choice options.  

If there is an enrollment dispute, the student will be immediately enrolled in the school in which 
enrollment is sought, pending resolution of the dispute. The parent or guardian will be informed 
of the district’s decision and the reasons therefor, (or informed if the student does not qualify for 
McKinney-Vento, if applicable) and their appeal rights in writing and in a language they can 
understand. The district’s liaison will carry out dispute resolution as provided by state policy. 
Unaccompanied youth will also be enrolled pending resolution of the dispute. 

Once the enrollment decision is made, the school will immediately enroll the student, pursuant to 
district policies. However, enrollment may not be denied or delayed due to the lack of any 
document normally required for enrollment, including academic records, medical records, proof 
of residency, mailing address or other documentation, or denied or delayed due to missed 
application deadlines or fees, fines or absences at a previous school.  
 
If the student does not have immediate access to immunization records, the student will be 
admitted under a personal exception. Students and families should be encouraged to obtain 
current immunization records or immunizations as soon as possible, and the district liaison is 
directed to assist. Records from the student’s previous school will be requested from the previous 
school pursuant to district policies. Emergency contact information is required at the time of 
enrollment consistent with district policies, and in  compliance with the state’s Address 
Confidentiality Program when necessary. However, the district cannot demand  emergency 
contact information in a form or manner that creates a barrier to enrollment and/or attendance at 
school. 

 

Homeless students are entitled to transportation to their school of origin or the school where they 
are to be enrolled. If the school of origin is in a different district, or a homeless student is living 
in another district but will attend his or her school of origin in this district, the districts will 
coordinate the transportation services necessary for the student, or will divide the costs equally. 

The district’s liaison for homeless students and their families will coordinate with local social 
service agencies that provide services to homeless children and youths and their families; other 
school districts on issues of transportation and records transfers; and state and local housing 
agencies responsible for comprehensive housing affordability strategies. This coordination 
includes providing public notice of the educational rights of homeless students where such 
children and youth receive services under the McKinney-Vento Act, such as schools, family 
shelters and soup kitchens. The notice must be disseminated in a manner and form that parents, 

Packet page 75 of 84



Page 3 of 6 

Policy No. 3115 
Students 

guardians and unaccompanied youth receiving such services can understand, including, if 
necessary and to the extent feasible, in their native language. The district’s liaison will also 
review and recommend amendments to district policies that may act as barriers to the enrollment 
of homeless students and will participate in professional development and other technical 
assistance activities, as determined by the state-level (OSPI) coordinator for homeless children 
and youth programs. 
 

 
The superintendent will:  

• Strongly encourage district staff, including substitute and regular bus drivers to annually    
review the video posted on the OSPI website on identification of student 
homelessness; 

• Strongly encourage every district-designated homeless student liaison to attend trainings 
provided by the state on identification and serving homeless youth.  Ensure that the 
district includes in materials provided to all students at the beginning of the school 
year or at enrollment, information about services and support for homeless students 
(i.e., the brochure posted on the OSPI website). 

• Use a variety of communications each year to notify students and families about services 
and support available to them if they experience homelessness (e.g., distributing and 
collecting a universal annual housing intake survey, providing parent brochures 
directly to students and families, announcing the information at school-wide 
assemblies, posting information on the district’s website).  

 Facilitating on-time grade level progression 
 The district will: 1) waive specific courses required for graduation for students 
experiencing homelessness if similar coursework has been satisfactorily completed in 
another school district; or 2) provide reasonable justification for denial of the waiver. In 
the event the district denies a waiver and the student would have qualified to graduate 
from their sending school district, the district will provide an alternative process of 
obtaining required coursework so that the student may graduate on time. 

 The district will consolidate partial credit, unresolved, or incomplete coursework 
and will provide students experiencing homelessness with opportunities to accrue credit 
in a manner that eliminates academic and nonacademic barriers for the student. 

 For students who have been unable to complete an academic course and receive 
full credit due to withdrawal or transfer, the district will grant partial credit for 
coursework completed before the date of the withdrawal or transfer. When the district 
receives a transfer student in these circumstances, it will accept the student’s partial 
credits, apply them to the student’s academic progress or graduation or both, and allow 
the student to earn credits regardless of the student’s date of enrollment in the district. 

 In the event a student is transferring at the beginning of or during their junior or 
senior year of high school and is ineligible to graduate after all alternatives have been 
considered, the district will work with the sending district to ensure the awarding of a 
diploma from the sending district if the student meets the graduation requirements of the 
sending district. 

Packet page 76 of 84



Page 4 of 6 

Policy No. 3115 
Students 

 In the event a student enrolled in three or more school districts as a high school 
student, has met state requirements, has transferred to the district, but is ineligible to 
graduate from the district after all alternatives have been considered, the district will 
waive its local requirements and ensure that the student receives a diploma. 

  
 Informed consent for healthcare 

 Informed consent for healthcare of behalf of a student experiencing homelessness 
may be obtained from a school nurse, school counselor, or homeless student liaison 
when: 
  
a. Consent is necessary for non-emergency, outpatient, primary care services, including 
physical examinations, vision examinations and eyeglasses, dental examinations, hearing 
examinations and hearing aids, immunizations, treatments for illnesses and conditions, 
and routine follow-up care customarily provided by a health care provider in an 
outpatient setting, excluding elective surgeries; 
  
b. The student meets the definition of a “homeless child or youth” under the federal 
McKinney-Vento homeless education assistance improvements act of 2001; and 
  
c. The student is not under the supervision or control of a parent, custodian, or legal 
guardian, and is not in the care and custody of the department of social and health 
services. 
 The District and District employee authorized to consent to care under this policy 
are not subject to administrative sanctions or civil damages resulting from the consent or 
non-consent for care or payment for care. 

•  

 
 
Cross References: Board Policy 3116 Students in Foster  Care 
 Board Policy 3120 Enrollment 
 Board Policy 3231 Student Records 

 Board Policy 3413 Student Immunization and Life -
Threatening Conditions 

 Board Policy 4218   Language Access Plan 
 
 
 
Legal References: RCW 28A.225.215 Enrollment of children without legal 

residences 
 RCW 28A.320.145  Support for homeless students. 
 

 20 U.S.C. 6301 et seq. Elementary and Secondary Education 
Act of 1965 as amended by the 
Every Student Succeeds Act [ESSA] 

Packet page 77 of 84

http://wa/wssda/MC.nsf/Index?Open&policyid=ABKQJB691233
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.320.145


Page 5 of 6 

Policy No. 3115 
Students 

 42 U.S.C. 11431 et seq. McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act 
 Chapter 28A.320 RCW  Provisions applicable to all districts    (new 

section created by 3SHB 1682, 2016 
legislative session) 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Management Resources: Policy News, July 2017 
  Policy News, November 2016 
  Policy News, December 2014 
  Policy News, October 2004   
  Policy News, October 2002  
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Packet page 78 of 84

http://http/app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.320
http://http/app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.320
http://http/app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.320


Page 6 of 6 

Policy No. 3115 
Students 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adoption Date: 2.27.08 
Steilacoom Historical School District 
Revised: 10.23.13; 2.25.15; 12.14.16; 
 

Packet page 79 of 84



 OF DIRECTORS 
 

STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Board Meeting Date: 9/27/2017 

Strategic Focus Area 

☐  Teaching and Learning        

☒   Safety, Service and Support  

☐  Family & Community Involvement 

☐  Resource Management         

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
First Reading of Policy 3116 Students in Foster Care 
WSSDA policy update includes new section: Facilitating on-time grade level progression. 
Specifically, the new section addresses graduation requirements, partial credit, incomplete 
coursework and provide opportunities to earn credit. Coursework and credits from other district high 
schools will be accepted; local graduation requirements will be waived to ensure the student 
receives a diploma. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
It is the recommendation of the Superintendent to move Policy 3116 to a second reading. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report prepared by: 
Nancy McClure, Executive Director of Assessment and Intervention 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

Packet page 80 of 84



Policy No. 3116 
Students 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
STUDENTS IN FOSTER CARE 

  
The board recognizes that students in foster care experience mobility in and out of the foster care 
system and from one home placement to another that disrupts their education, thereby creating 
barriers to academic success and on-time graduation. Through collaboration with state, local 
and/or tribal child welfare agencies, the district will strive to minimize or eliminate educational 
barriers for students in foster care, particularly with regard to enrollment, transfer of student 
records, and transportation to their school of origin. The superintendent or designee is authorized 
to establish procedures and/or practices for implementing this policy. 

Point of contact 
The superintendent or designee will designate a foster care liaison an appropriate staff member to 
serve as the district’s point of contact for local child welfare agencies. if such agencies notify the 
District in writing that they have designated a point of contact for the District.  The liaison point 
of contact will work with appropriate state, local and/or tribal child welfare agencies to receive 
notifications and share information regarding the status and progress of students in foster care. 
The liaison point of contact will also work collaboratively with the district’s Title I coordinator 
to provide supports for students in foster care that are enrolled or seeking to enroll in the district. 

Enrollment 
Whenever practical and in the best interest of the child, children placed into foster care shall will 
remain enrolled in the schoolsschool they were attending at the time they entered upon entering 
foster care. When a determination of the student’s best interest is necessary, it will take into 
account a number of factors as described in the procedures that accompany this policy, including 
concern for the student’s safety as well as the availability of supports for the student’s 
educational success. Such a determination should involve a district representative, a 
representative of the appropriate child welfare agency, the student, and the student’s biological 
and foster families, if reasonably feasible should be involved. 

If remaining in the school of origin is determined not to be in the student’s best interest, the 
district will immediately enroll that student in their new school. Enrollment may not be denied or 
delayed based on the fact that documents normally required for enrollment have not been 
provided. 
 
A school may not prevent a student in foster care from enrolling based on incomplete 
information of any history of placement in special education, any past, current, or pending 
disciplinary action, any history of violent behavior, or behavior listed in RCW 13.04.155, any 
unpaid fines or fees imposed by other schools, or any health conditions affecting the student’s 
educational needs during the ten (10) day period that the Department of Social and Health 
Services has to obtain that information. Upon enrollment, the district will make reasonable 
efforts to obtain and assess the child’s educational history in order to meet the child’s unique 
needs within two (2) school business days.   
  

Packet page 81 of 84



Policy No. 3116 
Students 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Records Transfer 
When a student in foster care transfers schools, whether within the district or to another school 
district, the enrolling school will immediately contact the sending school to obtain academic and 
other records.  The sending school will respond as soon as possible to requests it receives for 
records of students in foster care. 
 
Additionally, upon receipt of a request for education records of a student in foster care from the 
Department of Social and Health Services, the district will provide the records to the agency 
within two (2) school days. 
  
Transportation 
By December 10, 2016, the district will collaborate with state, local or tribal child welfare 
agencies, as appropriate, to implement a written transportation procedure by which prompt, cost-
effective transportation will be provided, arranged and funded for students to remain in their 
school of origin when in their best interest for the duration of their time in foster care.   
 
The written procedure will ensure that if additional costs are incurred in providing transportation, 
the district will provide transportation to the school of origin if: 1) the child welfare agency 
agrees to reimburse the transportation; (2) the district agrees to pay for the cost of the 
transportation; or 3) the district and the child welfare agency agree to share transportation costs. 
  
Dispute resolution 
In the event that a caregiver or education decision-maker disputes a district decision regarding 
the best interest of the student in foster care with regard to enrollment or the provision of any 
other education-related service, including transportation, the caregiver or education decision-
maker may use the three-tiered appeals process outlined in the procedure that accompanies this 
policy. The district will make all reasonable efforts to collaborate with appropriate agencies and 
aggrieved parties to resolve the dispute at the local level. 
 
In the event that a dispute occurs between the district and a child welfare agency with regard to 
issues that do not involve educational placement or the provision of educational services (e.g., 
transportation reimbursements, failure to collaborate), such disputes may be forwarded to the 
office of the superintendent of public instruction for resolution.  
  
Review of unexpected or excessive absences 
A district representative or school employee will review unexpected or excessive absences of 
students in foster care and those awaiting placement with the student and adults involved with 
the student, including their caseworker, educational liaison, attorney if one is appointed, parent, 
guardian and foster parents. The purpose of the review is to determine the cause of the absences, 
taking into account: unplanned school transitions, periods of running from care, in-patient 
treatment, incarceration, school adjustment, educational gaps, psychosocial issues and 
unavoidable appointments during the school day. The representative or employee will take 
proactive steps to support the student’s school work so the student does not fall behind and to 
avoid suspension or expulsion based on truancy.  
  

Packet page 82 of 84



Policy No. 3116 
Students 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Facilitating on-time grade level progression 
The district will: 1) waive specific courses required for graduation for students in foster care if 
similar coursework has been satisfactorily completed in another school district; or 2) provide 
reasonable justification for denial of the waiver. In the event the district denies a waiver and the 
student would have qualified to graduate from their sending school district, the district will make 
best efforts to provide an alternative process of obtaining required coursework so that the student 
may graduate on time.  
 
The district encourages consolidation of will consolidate partial credit, unresolved or incomplete 
coursework and to will provide students in foster care with opportunities to accrue credit though 
classroom hours, correspondence courses, or portable assisted study sequence units designed in a 
manner that eliminates academic and nonacademic barriers for migrant high school the students.  
 
For students.  who have been unable to complete an academic course and receive full credit due 
to withdrawal or transfer, the district will grant partial credit for coursework completed before 
the date of the withdrawal or transfer.  When the district receives a transfer student in these 
circumstances, it will accept the student’s partial credits, apply them to the student’s academic 
progress or graduation or both, and allow the student to earn credits regardless of the student’s 
date of enrollment in the district. 
In the event a student is transferring at the beginning of or during their junior or senior year of 
high school and is ineligible to graduate after all alternatives have been considered, the district 
will work with the sending district to ensure the awarding of a diploma from the sending district 
if the student meets the graduation requirements of the sending district.   
In the event a student enrolled in three or more school districts as a high school student, has met 
state requirements, has transferred to the district, but is ineligible to graduate from the district 
after all alternatives have been considered, the district will waive its local requirements and 
ensure that the student receives a diploma. 
  
 
Legal References: RCW 28A.150.510 Transmittal of education 

records to department of social and health services – 
Disclosure of educational records – Data-sharing 
agreements – Comprehensive needs requirement 
document – Report 
 
RCW 28A.225.023 Youth dependent pursuant to 
Chapter 13.34 RCW - Review of unexpected or 
excessive absences – Support for youth’s school 
work 
 
RCW 28A.225.215 Enrollment of children without 
legal residences 
 

Packet page 83 of 84

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.150.510
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.150.510
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.150.510
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.150.510
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.150.510
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.225.023
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.225.023
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.225.023
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.225.023
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.225.215
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.225.215


Policy No. 3116 
Students 

Page 4 of 4 
 

RCW 28A.225.330 Enrolling students from other 
districts—Requests for information and 
permanently records—Withheld transcripts-
Immunity from liability—Notification to teachers 
and security personnel—Rules 
 
RCW 28A.320.192 On-time grade level progression 
and graduation of students who are dependent youth 
 
RCW 74.13.550 Child placement – Policy of 
educational continuity 
 

Cross References: 20 U.S.C. 6301 et seq. Elementary and Secondary 
Education Act of 1965 as amended by the Every 
Student Succeeds Act [ESSA] 
2418 - Waiver of High School Graduation Credits 
3115 - Homeless Students- Enrollment Rights and 
Services 
3120 - Enrollment 
3122 - Excused and Unexcused Absences 
3231 - Student Records 
6100 - Revenues From Local, State and Federal 
Sources 
 

Management Resources:   2017 – July Issue 
2016 - November Issue 
OSPI list of Foster Care Liaisons/DSHS Contacts 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adoption Date: 1.25.17 
Revised:  
Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 

Packet page 84 of 84

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.225.330
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.225.330
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.225.330
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.225.330
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.225.330
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.320.192
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.320.192
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=74.13.550
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=74.13.550
http://www2.ed.gov/documents/essa-act-of-1965.pdf
http://www2.ed.gov/documents/essa-act-of-1965.pdf
http://www2.ed.gov/documents/essa-act-of-1965.pdf
http://wa/wssda/MC.nsf/Index?Open&policyid=9VCVC9801037
http://wa/wssda/MC.nsf/Index?Open&policyid=ABKQFV68D801
http://wa/wssda/MC.nsf/Index?Open&policyid=ABKQFV68D801
http://wa/wssda/MC.nsf/Index?Open&policyid=8U6T42755888
http://wa/wssda/MC.nsf/Index?Open&policyid=ABKQFW68DDA8
http://wa/wssda/MC.nsf/Index?Open&policyid=8U6UPL7CA102
http://wa/wssda/MC.nsf/Index?Open&policyid=8U72SD038D27
http://wa/wssda/MC.nsf/Index?Open&policyid=8U72SD038D27
https://www.boarddocs.com/wa/wssda/MC.nsf/Index?Open&newsid=AFHPAE633E40
http://www.k12.wa.us/FosterCare/ContactInformation.aspx

	Agenda (p. 1)
	Approval of August & September Accounts Payable and August 2017 Payroll.pdf (p. 3)
	Approval of 8.31.17 Financial Report.pdf (p. 4)
	Approval of Co-Curricular Personnel Report.pdf (p. 17)
	Approval of Classified Personnel Report.pdf (p. 18)
	Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes 8.24.17.pdf (p. 19)
	Approval of Study Session Minutes 9.13.17.pdf (p. 22)
	2017-18 District and Board Goals.pdf (p. 24)
	Second Reading of Policy 1410.pdf (p. 25)
	Second Reading of Policy 5005.pdf (p. 28)
	Second Reading of Policy 4040.pdf (p. 34)
	Approval of SCEA Collective Bargaining Agreement 2017-19.pdf (p. 38)
	First Reading of Policy 3115.pdf (p. 73)
	First Reading of Policy 3116.pdf (p. 80)

